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The Hon. George Souris MP

Minister for Tourism, Major Events, 

Hospitality and Racing

Minister for the Arts

Parliament House

Sydney NSW 2000

 

Dear Minister

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 10 of the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 

1984 (NSW), we have pleasure in submitting to you the Annual Report of the New South 

Wales Film and Television Office (trading as Screen NSW), for the year ended 30 June 

2012, to be tabled in Parliament in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Yours sincerely

 

Helen Wright

Chair

Maureen Barron

Chief Executive

LETTER TO THE MINISTER
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Through its work supporting screen projects, 

positioning NSW as the premier destination for 

screen production, and promoting the NSW 

film friendly protocols, Screen NSW reinforces 

the significant social, cultural and economic 

contribution the state’s screen sector makes to 

NSW.

In 2011–12, Screen NSW approved production 

finance of $6.5 million to 32 screen projects, 

estimated to generate more than $99 million 

expenditure in NSW, and create more than 4,300 

NSW jobs.

In addition, Screen NSW provided development 

funding of $1,049,781, to 77 screen projects, 

11 festival travel approvals, four above-the-

line attachments, three Producer Extension 

Scheme placements and 10 special development 

initiatives. Screen NSW also provided $180,000 

to six short film projects for emerging screen 

practitioners and $92,500 through the VFX 

Placement Scheme to support five emerging 

visual effects (VFX) artists with placements 

in top Sydney-based post, digital and VFX 

companies.

These core production and development 

programs build NSW’s capacity for screen 

content production and nurture future 

generations of creative industries workers, who 

will shape the cultural and economic direction of 

our State.

Regional NSW shared in the economic and 

cultural benefits of screen production through 

Screen NSW providing $276,113 to four screen 

projects from the Regional Filming Fund, which 

leveraged over $3,273,799 million expenditure in 

Albury, Wollemi National Park, Seal Rocks, Byron 

Bay, Casino and the Northern Rivers area.

NSW productions have showcased NSW 

locations, communities and lifestyles to national 

and international audiences and key tourism 

markets.

Audiences have responded strongly to 

productions supported by the NSW Government, 

many of which have also achieved critical and 

commercial success. 

At the inaugural Australian Academy of Cinema 

and Television Arts Awards held at the Sydney 

Opera House in January 2012, local productions, 

including Paper Giants: The Birth of Cleo, 

acclaimed television drama East West 101, and 

the feature films, Oranges and Sunshine and Griff 

the Invisible, were all honoured with awards.

NSW feature films have screened at the Cannes 

Film Festival, Sydney Film Festival, Melbourne 

Film Festival, and Toronto Film Festival, and 

local box office figures have been strong. Screen 

NSW-funded feature film, The Sapphires, enjoyed 

its world premiere screening at the Cannes Film 

Festival, the only Australian feature film selected 

for 2012, and the third NSW Indigenous themed 

film to be selected in the last four years. It 

opened in Australia as the number one film.

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR ANd CHIEF ExECuTIvE
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Prior to its national screening on ABC TV, Sydney 

Film Festival held a special event and gala 

screening for the telemovie, Mabo, with the Mabo 

family present, to celebrate the 20th anniversary 

of the historic High Court decision.

Large-scale production in Sydney demonstrates 

the competitiveness of doing business in NSW, 

attracting further high profile international 

film studios and companies to locate their 

productions in our State.

It puts a global spotlight on the strength of 

our digital economy, from smart networks and 

intelligent technologies to digital animation, 

visual effects, live-action filming and interactive 

content, which are increasingly converged. 

To market the strengths of the NSW screen 

industry to global partners, Screen NSW 

provided location pitches for 233 international 

and domestic screen projects, including feature 

films, factual productions, TV series, short films 

and television commercials. 25 inbound scouts 

were hosted for international companies such 

as Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation and 

Sony Pictures Entertainment.

In 2011–12 several large budget feature films went 

into production in NSW, including The Great 

Gatsby, which has resulted in a boost of more 

than $120 million for the NSW economy, and 

more than 2,300 jobs for cast and crew, extras, 

dancers, stunt work and in post-production and 

visual effects.

The NSW Government, through targeted support 

from NSW Trade and Investment and Screen 

NSW, helped secure The Wolverine, a production 

by major US studio Twentieth Century Fox Film 

Corporation, which is estimated to create almost 

2,000 NSW jobs for cast, crew and extras, and to 

spend more than $80 million in the State. 

In the 2012–13 financial year, the Government 

has committed $9.89 million in recurrent and 

capital funding for Screen NSW to boost creative 

excellence and commercial growth in the local 

screen industry. In addition, Screen NSW will 

administer the State’s Interactive Media Fund, 

providing a comprehensive suite of programs for 

the NSW screen industry.

Screen NSW will continue to provide invaluable 

support to the sector, with the aim of maintaining 

NSW as the leading Asutralian state in 

production quality and volume, production 

business stability and competitiveness.

 

Helen Wright

Chair

 

Maureen Barron

Chief Executive
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ChARteR

The New South Wales Film and Television Office 

(FTO) is a statutory authority established under 

the NSW Film and Television Office Act 1988 

(NSW), amended 1996 (‘the Act’).

The main functions of the Office, set out in 

Section 6 of the Act (1996), are:

A To provide financial and other assistance to 

the film and television industry in carrying out 

the industry’s activities in New South Wales 

and to disseminate information about those 

activities;

b To provide financial and other assistance 

for persons (including directors, producers, 

actors, writers and technicians) whose work 

in the film and television industry merits 

encouragement;

C To provide financial and other assistance  

for script and project development for film 

and television;

d To contribute, financially and otherwise, to the 

work of film festivals and markets;

e To assist in the promotion of public interest 

in film as a medium of communication and 

as an art form and in the development of an 

informed and critical film audience;

f To provide policy and support services and 

advice to Government agencies on the 

production of films and sound recordings;

g To advise the Minister on the operation  

of the film and television industry in New 

South Wales;

h To undertake the production of films or sound 

recordings on its own behalf or for any other 

person, body or organisation (including any 

Government agency); and

i To carry out such obligations and 

responsibilities determined by the Minister as 

may be necessary for the maintenance and 

administration of the film catalogue vested in 

the Office.

vision

Screen NSW stimulates creative and business 

opportunities in the screen industry. We promote 

innovation in screen content and technology, 

and champion the contribution the NSW screen 

industry makes to our culture, economy and 

society. 

We value:

 f The creation of compelling screen experiences

 f Creative talent and technical expertise

 f Diversity in content, formats, production 

approaches and delivery platforms

 f Partnerships and collaboration

 f Transparency, integrity and equality of access

 f The exchange of current and relevant 

information

 f Professionalism and respect

 f Responsiveness, flexibility and adaptability.

CHARTER ANd vISION
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We believe that:

 f The screen industry is at the core of media 

and information communications. Our screen 

industry makes a significant contribution 

to our society: socially, culturally and 

economically.

 f Development and support of the screen 

industry is a necessary part of maintaining 

the vitality of the NSW economy as a whole. 

 f Diversity in screen content, culture and 

creation is important. We work towards 

creating opportunities for the widest possible 

diversity of people to participate in the 

making, viewing and appreciation of screen 

content.

 f The digital age is here. The world no longer 

sees screen as purely film or television. People 

now make, share and see moving images on 

digital formats and platforms at home, work, 

school, in the cinema and on the move in cars, 

planes and trains. Screen NSW needs to be 

flexible to adapt to the implications of the 

digital age.

 f We have a key role in driving the development 

of a strategic and integrated screen policy 

across New South Wales, and across the 

screen industries.

 f Our role is to invest time, energy and 

resources in the future of a robust, agile and 

varied screen industry. 

 f Our role is to stimulate compelling screen 

experiences and provide high quality service 

to screen practitioners. 

sCreen nsW’s vision for the  
nsW sCreen industry in 2013

Both the Government and the community will 

value the NSW screen industry for its economic, 

cultural and social contribution to the State.

NSW will be friendly to the screen industries  

in terms of doing business. Locally-created  

and inbound production will be increased,  

with NSW capturing an increasing share of 

production activity.

NSW community will have increased 

engagement with all forms of screen content. 

Metropolitan and regional audiences will benefit 

from flourishing screen culture, with access to a 

wide range of product on many platforms. 

The NSW screen industry will:

 f be known locally and internationally for 

its creativity, innovation, excellence and 

opportunity for career development; 

 f harness new technologies;

 f be comprised of highly skilled creative 

professionals who continually seek to  

improve their skills and reflect the cultural 

diversity of NSW; 

 f have developed viable business models 

for creating and financing robust, agile and 

varied businesses and creative content in the 

digital environment;

 f have developed strong partnerships and 

collaborations locally and internationally;

 f have a healthy industry ecosystem, comprised 

of small, medium and large enterprises 

working together effectively;

 f be engaged in 360-degree commissioning, 

so that creative ideas are developed to be 

suitable for a range of media and platforms.
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Screen NSW would like to acknowledge the following personnel who also contributed during 2011-12:

Tania Chambers, Ashley Luke, Kya Blondin, Katherine Slattery, Cynthia Meyer, Lorraine Cox, Aga 

Kolaczkowski, Louise Blue, Sandra Stockley, Mitchell Stanley, Heaven Muecke, Abhay Chavan, Jenny 

Hughes, Rachel Higgins, Joan Sauers, Stephan Moore

director 

Megan Simpson Huberman

Senior dev. and Prod. Executive 

Nerida Moore

dev. and Prod. Executive 

Samantha Jennings

dev. and Prod. Executive 

Sally Regan

development Executive 

Justin Donoghue

dev. and Prod. Coordinator 

(Vacant)

Producer Extension Placement

Maria Tran

A/Manager

Grainne Brunsdon

A/Marketing and 

Industry dev. Officer 

Anna Yanatchkova

Graduate Officer

Holly Byers

Business Affairs 

Manager 

Karen Telfer

Business Affairs 

Executive 

Samantha Fake

Business Affairs 

Officer 

Michael Barber

Business Affairs 

Coordinator 

(Vacant)

director 

Paul de Carvalho

A/Senior Prod. 

Attraction Executive 

Cheryl Conway

Prod. Attraction 

Executive

Kate Cunningham

A/Prod. Attraction 

Executive

Shannon Wheeler

MinisteR foR the ARts

diReCtoR geneRAL,  
nsW depARtMent of tRAde And investMent, RegionAL infRAstRuCtuRe And seRviCes

deputY diReCtoR geneRAL, industRY, innovAtion & investMent

sCReen nsW boARd exeCutive diReCtoR, ARts nsW

Chief exeCutive, sCReen nsW — MAuReen bARRon

exeCutive AssistAnt, sCReen nsW — ZoWie udoWenko

stAkehoLdeR 
ReLAtions

deveLopMent And 
pRoduCtion

business  
AffAiRs

pRoduCtion 
AttRACtion And 

inCentives

ORGANISATIONAL CHART
as at 30 June 2012
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The Board of Screen NSW is 

constituted by Section 6 of  

the NSW Film and Television 

Office Act, 1988 (NSW), 

amended 1996. 

Section 6 stipulates that ‘the 

Board is to consist of seven 

members nominated by the 

Minister and appointed by the 

Governor. At least one of the 

members is to be from outside 

the film and television industry. 

Of the other members, one is 

to be appointed Chairperson 

of the Board (whether by the 

instrument of the member’s 

appointment as a member 

or by another instrument 

executed by the Governor). 

The Chairperson is to be a 

member appointed from 

outside the film and television 

industry.’

The Screen NSW Board was 

appointed on 1 January 1977. 

The Members of the Board as 

at 30 June 2012 follow. 

Details of Board Meetings and 

Committees are in Appendices 

21A and 21B.

helen Wright
Appointed as Chair to  

31 december 2012

Ms Wright holds a Bachelor of 

Laws from UNSW, attended 

the Harvard Graduate School 

of Business, was a Partner at 

leading Australian law firm 

Freehills for 17 years, and 

has served on a number of 

commercial, university and 

public sector boards.  

Ms Wright presently sits on 

the Board of Australian Leisure 

and Entertainment Property 

Management Limited, and she 

is both the Statutory and  

Other Offices Remuneration 

Tribunal and also the Local 

Government Remuneration 

Tribunal for NSW.

geoffrey atherden 
Reappointed for three years to 

31 december 2013

Screenwriter. Credits include 

Stepfather of the Bride, Grass 

Roots and Mother and Son. 

Screen NSW Board member 

from 1997 to 2001. President of 

Australian Writers’ Foundation. 

Former President of the 

Australian Writers’ Guild. In 

2009, Mr Atherden was made 

a Member of the Order of 

Australia in the Australia  

Day Honours.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARd
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roseMary Blight
Reappointed for three years to 

31 december 2012

Principal partner of Goalpost 

Pictures Australia. Producer 

of feature films The Sapphires, 

Clubland, In The Winter Dark, 

Fresh Air and Mary and 

television programs Panic At 

Rock Island, The Eternity Man, 

Stepfather of the Bride, Small 

Claims 1, 2 and 3, Go Big and 

Love is a Four Letter Word. 

Executive Producer of feature 

films The Tree and Closed For 

Winter and television programs 

An Accidental Soldier, Scorched 

and Lockie Leonard Series 1 

and 2.

darren dale 
Appointed for three years to  

31 december 2013

Company director of Blackfella 

Films since 2001. Independent 

screen producer whose credits 

include landmark multi-

platform history series First 

Australians, award winning 

feature documentary The Tall 

Man, ABC telemovie Mabo and 

groundbreaking Indigenous 

drama series Redfern Now. 

Darren is a Bundjalung man 

from northern NSW. 

sue Murray 
Appointed for three years to  

31 december 2013

Sue Murray has worked in the 

film industry since 1977. She 

is an executive producer with 

Fandango Australia where her 

credits are Rolf de Heer’s Ten 

Canoes, Dr Plonk and The King 

Is Dead!, Alkinos Tsilimidos’ 

Tom White and Alexandra’s 

Project as co-producer. She 

also executive produced the 

documentaries The Balanda 

and the Bark Canoes, We’re 

Livin’ On Dog Food and 

Paramedico. Ms Murray is also 

a consultant to a range of 

film agencies and producers 

and, with the company 

filmmarketing, worked on the 

marketing strategies for Son 

of a Lion, My Tehran For Sale, 

Samson & Delilah and Little 

Sparrows.

Ken reid 
Reappointed for three years to 

31 december 2012

Partner with KPMG and Head 

of Media practice in Australia. 

Ken’s client focus is on 

television, publishing and new 

media. Former head of finance 

for an independent music 

recording and publishing group 

in the UK. 

PatriCia rothKrans 
Appointed for three years to  

31 december 2014

Co-director of The Heaton 

Group. Former CEO Ausfim 

(2000–2005) and member of 

the Ausfilm board (1998–1999). 

Previously Manager of NSW 

Film and Television Office 

Production Liaison Unit  

(1998–1999). Graduated from 

AFTRS and has worked in the 

film industry since 1980.
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seLeCted keY AChieveMents

2012

Jun 2012
Funding of more than $770,000 from the Interactive Media Fund was announced 

for 10 new cutting edge interactive media projects to be made in NSW.

Jun 2012
X|Media|Lab Conference and Lab—Global Media Ideas, annual international summit 

held at Sydney Opera House as part of Vivid Sydney.

Jun 2012

Screen NSW with principal partner Screen Australia, event partner Vivid Sydney 

and strategic partner Sydney Film Festival, present Inside Out/Outside In, a 

three-day intensive film development seminar with respected US producers and 

developers Meg LeFauve and Sheila Hanahan Taylor.

Jun 2012

The 59th Sydney Film Festival took place, under the direction of Nashen Moodley. 

Attendances at films and talks grew by 10% from 2011, to 122,000. Six Screen NSW-

funded projects screened at the festival, including two in competition, Dead Europe 

and Lore.

May 2012
Screen NSW-funded feature film, The Sapphires, officially selected and screened in 

the prestigious Cannes International Film Festival 2012.

May 2012
International television broadcast industry conference, INPUT, takes place in Sydney 

for the first time.

May 2012
Screen NSW-funded series Go Back to Where You Came From wins the Best of 

Rose d’Or, the most prestigious international television entertainment award. 

aPr 2012

NSW Government secures the production of The Wolverine scheduled to begin 

shooting in Sydney in August 2012. The production will create almost 2,000 jobs for 

cast, crew and extras, and spend more than $80 million in the State.

YEAR AT A GLANCE
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Jan 2012

The inaugural Samsung Australian Academy of Cinema and Television Arts 

(AACTA) Awards took place at Sydney Opera House. NSW productions, Packed to 

the Rafters, Paper Giants: The Birth of Cleo, East West 101 and feature films Oranges 

and Sunshine and Griff The Invisible all took home awards.

Jan 2012 Maureen Barron AM appointed as Chief Executive of Screen NSW.

Jan 2012
Screen NSW-funded feature film Wish You Were Here screens at Sundance 

Film Festival. 

2011

deC 2011
Screen NSW-funded projects received 55 Samsung Australian Academy of Cinema 

and Television Arts (AACTA) Awards nominations. 

deC 2011
Screen NSW launches its upgraded website, featuring the new  

‘Indigenous Screen’ resource.

nov 2011

NSW secures the production of a new animated feature film based on LEGO. 

Warner Bros has contracted Animal Logic to make the film, which will see up to  

$48 million spent in NSW, with employment of over 200 people

nov 2011
The Tall Man team (Darren Dale, Rachel Perkins, Tony Krawitz) awarded the 2011 

Walkley Award for Long-form Journalism: Documentary

nov 2011
NSW Government announces $3 million Interactive Media Fund and development 

of a Digital Economy Industry Action Plan. 

nov 2011

Screen NSW-funded project Here I Am (Directed by Beck Cole and produced 

by Kath Shelper) wins the Best Dramatic Feature; and The Tall Man (Directed 

by Tony Krawitz and produced by Darren Dale) wins Best Documentary at the 

ImagineNATIVE Film and Media Arts Festival. 

oCt 2011
Screen NSW-funded TV-series Dance Academy is nominated for an International 

Emmy Award. 

seP 2011
Screen NSW-funded documentary Recipe For Murder wins the NSW Premier’s 

Multimedia History Prize for a website or film. 

seP 2011

Filming begins on The Great Gatsby, a new 3D film directed by Baz Luhrmann. 

Over 400 cast and crew will be employed during principal photography, as well as 

many extras. 

11
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – NEW SOUTH WALES FILM AND TELEVISION OFFICE  

  

 

Start of audited Financial Statements 
 
Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2012 
 
  

Notes 
Actual  

2012 
$’000 

 Budget  
2012 

$’000 

Actual  
2011 

$’000 
Expenses excluding losses     
Operating expenses     
   Board members 2(a) 72 111 93 
   Personnel services     2(b) 2,238 2,448 2,175 
   Other operating expenses 2(c) 1,263 1,703 1,767 
Depreciation and amortisation 2(d) 30 55 27 
Grants and subsidies 2(e) 9,759 5,409 10,475 

Total expenses excluding losses  13,362 9,726 14,537 
     
Revenue     
Investment revenue 3(a) 505 375 522 
Grants and contributions 3(b) 9,345 8,551 13,910 
Other revenue 3(c) 537 700 776 
Total Revenue  10,387 9,626 15,208 
     
Gain / (loss) on disposal 4 (16) 0 (3) 
     
Net result   (2,991) (100) 668 

     
Other comprehensive income     

Total other comprehensive income   0 0 0 
     

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   (2,991) (100) 668 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 
 

stAteMent of CoMpRehensive inCoMe foR the YeAR ended 30 June 2012

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – NEW SOUTH WALES FILM AND TELEVISION OFFICE  

  

 

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012 
 

  
Notes 

Actual 
2012 

$’000 

Budget 
2012 

$’000 

Actual 
2011 

$’000 

ASSETS     
Current Assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 6 9,022 9,394 10,447 
Receivables 7 694 1,036 610 
Total Current Assets  9,716 10,430 11,057 

     
Non-Current Assets     
Plant and equipment 8 9 38 49 
Intangible assets 9 71 37 37 
Total Non-Current Assets  80 75 86 
     

Total Assets  9,796 10,505 11,143 

     
LIABILITIES     
Current Liabilities     
Payables 11 4,971 2,542 3,316 
Provisions 12 192 201 187 
Other 13 0 16 16 
Total Current Liabilities  5,163 2,759 3,519 

     
Non-Current Liabilities     
Other  13 0 212 0 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  0 212 0 
     

Total Liabilities  5,163 2,971 3,519 

     

Net Assets  4,633 7,534 7,624 

     
EQUITY     
Accumulated funds  4,633 7,534 7,624 
Total Equity  4,633 7,534 7,624 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 

stAteMent of finAnCiAL position As At 30 June 2012

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – NEW SOUTH WALES FILM AND TELEVISION OFFICE  

  

 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

 Accumulated 
Funds 

Total 

 $’000 $’000 

Balance at 1 July 2011 7,624 7,624 
Net result for the year        (2,991) (2,991) 
Total other comprehensive income 0 0 
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners 0 0 
Balance at 30 June 2012 4,633 4,633 

   
Balance at 1 July 2010 6,956 6,956 
Net result for the year        668 668 
Total other comprehensive income 0 0 
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners 0 0 
Balance at 30 June 2011 7,624 7,624 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

stAteMent of ChAnges in equitY foR the YeAR ended 30 June 2012
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – NEW SOUTH WALES FILM AND TELEVISION OFFICE  

  

 

 
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2012 
 
  

Notes 
Actual  

2012 
$’000 

Budget  
2012 

$’000 

Actual 
2011 

$’000 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
Payments     
Personnel services and Board members  (2,262) (2,575) (2,263) 
Grants and subsidies  (9,759) (5,409) (10,475) 
Other  (976) (3,049) (2,101) 

Total Payments  (12,997) (11,033) (14,839) 
     
Receipts     
Interest received  626 480 417 
Grants and contributions  9,344 8,536 13,910 
Other  1,939 1,662 2,158 
Total Receipts  11,909 10,678 16,485 
     

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17 (1,088) (355) 1,646 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
Purchases of plant and equipment and intangibles  (40) (44) (37) 
Repayment of Production Loan Fund advances   62 0 635 
Advances from Production Loan fund  (359) (654) (62) 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (337) (698) 536 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  0 0 0 

     
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH  (1,425) (1,053) 2,182 
Opening cash and cash equivalents  10,447 10,447 8,265 

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6 9,022 9,394 10,447 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 
 

stAteMent of CAsh fLoWs foR the YeAR ended 30 June 2012
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Notes to the financial statements 
 
1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

(a) Reporting Entity 
 
The New South Wales Film and Television Office trading as Screen NSW (Screen NSW) as a reporting entity, is a 
statutory body of the NSW State Government. Its activities relate to the promotion of and assistance to, the NSW film 
and television industry. 
 
Screen NSW is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective) and it has no cash generating units. The 
reporting entity is consolidated as part of the NSW Total State Sector Accounts. 
 
On 18 October 2012 the Board authorised the issue of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
(b) Basis of Preparation 
 
Screen NSW’s financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in 
accordance with: 
 

• the Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations) 
 
• the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and 
 
• the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General 

Government Sector Entities or issued by the Treasurer.  
 
Plant and equipment and financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ and available for sale are measured at 
fair value. Other financial statement items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. 
 
Judgements, key assumptions and estimations management has made are disclosed in the relevant notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Management estimations and assumptions have been applied in the following areas: 
 

(i) Valuation of Personnel Services Long Service Leave Provision  
Long service leave is measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits based 
on the application of certain factors specified in NSW TC 12/06 

 
All amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian currency.  
 
(c) Statement of Compliance 
 
The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian 
Accounting Interpretations.   
 
(d) Insurance 
 
Screen NSW’s insurance activities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of self 
insurance for Government agencies. The expense (premium) is determined by the Fund Manager based on past 
claim experience. 
 
(e) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

 
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that: 
 

• the amount of GST incurred by Screen NSW as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the 
Australian Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an 
item of expense and 

• receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 
 
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. However, the GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation 
Office are classified as operating cash flows. 
 

notes to the finAnCiAL stAteMents
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Notes to the financial statements 
 
1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

(a) Reporting Entity 
 
The New South Wales Film and Television Office trading as Screen NSW (Screen NSW) as a reporting entity, is a 
statutory body of the NSW State Government. Its activities relate to the promotion of and assistance to, the NSW film 
and television industry. 
 
Screen NSW is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective) and it has no cash generating units. The 
reporting entity is consolidated as part of the NSW Total State Sector Accounts. 
 
On 18 October 2012 the Board authorised the issue of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
(b) Basis of Preparation 
 
Screen NSW’s financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in 
accordance with: 
 

• the Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations) 
 
• the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and 
 
• the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General 

Government Sector Entities or issued by the Treasurer.  
 
Plant and equipment and financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ and available for sale are measured at 
fair value. Other financial statement items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. 
 
Judgements, key assumptions and estimations management has made are disclosed in the relevant notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Management estimations and assumptions have been applied in the following areas: 
 

(i) Valuation of Personnel Services Long Service Leave Provision  
Long service leave is measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits based 
on the application of certain factors specified in NSW TC 12/06 

 
All amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian currency.  
 
(c) Statement of Compliance 
 
The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian 
Accounting Interpretations.   
 
(d) Insurance 
 
Screen NSW’s insurance activities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of self 
insurance for Government agencies. The expense (premium) is determined by the Fund Manager based on past 
claim experience. 
 
(e) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

 
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that: 
 

• the amount of GST incurred by Screen NSW as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the 
Australian Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an 
item of expense and 

• receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 
 
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. However, the GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation 
Office are classified as operating cash flows. 
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(f) Income recognition 
 
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration or contribution received or receivable.  Additional 
comments regarding the accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed below. 
 

(i) Sale of goods 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised as revenue when Screen NSW transfers the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the assets. 

 
(ii) Rendering of services 

 
Revenue is recognised when the service is provided or by reference to the stage of completion (based on 
labour hours incurred to date). 
 
(iii) Investment revenue 

 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Rental revenue is recognised in accordance with AASB 117 
Leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Royalty revenue is recognised in accordance with AASB 
118 Revenue on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement. Dividend 
revenue is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 when Screen NSW’s right to receive payment is 
established. 

 
(iv) Grants and contributions 

 
Grants and contributions include donations and grants from the Department of Trade and Investment, 
Regional Infrastructure and Services. They are generally recognised as income when Screen NSW obtains 
control over the assets comprising the grants and contributions. Control over grants and contributions are 
normally obtained when the obligations relating to the receipt have been met. 
 

(g) Recognition of Production Investments and Grants 
 
Production Investments and grants are recognised as an expense at the time when all formal contract documentation 
has been fully executed by all parties and the contract is covered by a performance guarantee. Where Production 
Investment and grant contracts are not covered by a performance guarantee, expenses are recognised as an 
expense when required milestones have been achieved. 
 
(h) Other Funding Programs 
 
Expenses for other programs are also recognised as an expense where formal contract documentation has been fully 
executed, and required milestones have been achieved. The 2012 result includes contracts that had been executed 
in prior years. 
 
(i) Personnel Services 
 

(i) Personnel Services Arrangements 
 
Staff working at Screen NSW are considered employees of the Department of Trade and Investment, 
Regional Infrastructure and Services. All payments to personnel and related obligations are done in the name 
of the Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services and are classified as 
“Personnel Services” costs in these financial statements. 
 

(ii) Personnel Services for Salaries and wages, annual leave, sick leave and on-costs 
 

Liabilities for salaries and wages (including non-monetary benefits), annual leave and paid sick leave that are 
due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the services are 
recognised and measured in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date at undiscounted 
amounts based on the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  
 
Long-term annual leave that is not expected to be taken within twelve months is measured at present value in 
accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.  
 
Unused non-vesting sick leave does not give rise to a liability as it is not considered probable that sick leave 
taken in the future will be greater than the benefits accrued in the future. 
 
The outstanding amounts of payroll tax, workers’ compensation insurance premiums and fringe benefits tax, 
which are consequential to employment, are recognised as liabilities and expenses where the employee 
benefits to which they relate have been recognised. 

 

(iii) Personnel Services for Long service leave and superannuation 
 

Screen NSW’s liabilities for long service leave and defined benefit superannuation are assumed by the Crown 
Entity. Screen NSW accounts for the liability as having been extinguished; resulting in the amount assumed 
being shown as part of the non-monetary revenue item described as “Personnel services benefits and 
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liabilities provided free of charge by the Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and 
Services”.  
 
Long service leave is measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.  This is 
based on the application of certain factors (specified in NSWTC 12/06) to employees with five or more years 
of service, using current rates of pay.  These factors were determined based on an actuarial review to 
approximate present value.  
 
The superannuation expense for the financial year is determined by using the formulae specified in the 
Treasurer’s Directions. The expense for certain superannuation schemes (i.e. Basic Benefit and First State 
Super) is calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salary. For other superannuation schemes (i.e. State 
Superannuation Scheme and State Authorities Superannuation Scheme), the expense is calculated as a 
multiple of the employees’ superannuation contributions. 

 
(j) Assets 
 

(i)  Acquisition of assets 
 
The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets controlled by 
Screen NSW. Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration 
given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount 
attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the specific requirements of other 
Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value at the date 
of acquisition.  
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction. 
 
Where payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent, i.e. 
deferred payment amount is effectively discounted at an asset-specific rate. 
 
(ii)   Capitalisation thresholds 
 
Plant and equipment and intangible assets costing $5,000 and above individually (or forming part of a 
network costing more than $5,000) are capitalised. 
 
(iii)  Revaluation of plant and equipment 
 

Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the “Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets at 
Fair Value” Policy and Guidelines Paper (TPP 07-01). This policy adopts fair value in accordance with AASB 
116 Property, Plant and Equipment.   
 
Plant and equipment is measured on an existing use basis, where there are no feasible alternative uses in the 
existing natural, legal, financial and socio-political environment.  However, in the limited circumstances where 
there are feasible alternative uses, assets are valued at their highest and best use. 
 
Fair value of plant and equipment is determined based on the best available market evidence, including 
current market selling prices for the same or similar assets.  Where there is no available market evidence, the 
asset’s fair value is measured at its market buying price, the best indicator of which is depreciated 
replacement cost. 
 
Non-specialised assets with short useful lives are measured at depreciated historical cost, as a surrogate for 
fair value. 
 
(iv) Impairment of plant and equipment 
 

As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, AASB 136 Impairment of Assets effectively is not 
applicable. AASB 136 modifies the recoverable amount test to the higher of fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost.  This means that, where an asset is already measured at fair value, 
impairment can only arise if selling costs are material.  Selling costs for Screen NSW are regarded as 
immaterial. 
 
(v) Depreciation of plant and equipment 
 

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis for all depreciable assets so as to write off the depreciable 
amount of each asset as it is consumed over its useful life to Screen NSW.  
 
All material separately identifiable components of assets are depreciated over their shorter useful lives. 

 
The standard default asset class lives are: 
   

Office furniture and fittings 10 years 
Computer equipment  4 years 
General plant and equipment 7 years 
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(f) Income recognition 
 
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration or contribution received or receivable.  Additional 
comments regarding the accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed below. 
 

(i) Sale of goods 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised as revenue when Screen NSW transfers the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the assets. 

 
(ii) Rendering of services 

 
Revenue is recognised when the service is provided or by reference to the stage of completion (based on 
labour hours incurred to date). 
 
(iii) Investment revenue 

 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Rental revenue is recognised in accordance with AASB 117 
Leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Royalty revenue is recognised in accordance with AASB 
118 Revenue on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement. Dividend 
revenue is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 when Screen NSW’s right to receive payment is 
established. 

 
(iv) Grants and contributions 

 
Grants and contributions include donations and grants from the Department of Trade and Investment, 
Regional Infrastructure and Services. They are generally recognised as income when Screen NSW obtains 
control over the assets comprising the grants and contributions. Control over grants and contributions are 
normally obtained when the obligations relating to the receipt have been met. 
 

(g) Recognition of Production Investments and Grants 
 
Production Investments and grants are recognised as an expense at the time when all formal contract documentation 
has been fully executed by all parties and the contract is covered by a performance guarantee. Where Production 
Investment and grant contracts are not covered by a performance guarantee, expenses are recognised as an 
expense when required milestones have been achieved. 
 
(h) Other Funding Programs 
 
Expenses for other programs are also recognised as an expense where formal contract documentation has been fully 
executed, and required milestones have been achieved. The 2012 result includes contracts that had been executed 
in prior years. 
 
(i) Personnel Services 
 

(i) Personnel Services Arrangements 
 
Staff working at Screen NSW are considered employees of the Department of Trade and Investment, 
Regional Infrastructure and Services. All payments to personnel and related obligations are done in the name 
of the Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services and are classified as 
“Personnel Services” costs in these financial statements. 
 

(ii) Personnel Services for Salaries and wages, annual leave, sick leave and on-costs 
 

Liabilities for salaries and wages (including non-monetary benefits), annual leave and paid sick leave that are 
due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the services are 
recognised and measured in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date at undiscounted 
amounts based on the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  
 
Long-term annual leave that is not expected to be taken within twelve months is measured at present value in 
accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.  
 
Unused non-vesting sick leave does not give rise to a liability as it is not considered probable that sick leave 
taken in the future will be greater than the benefits accrued in the future. 
 
The outstanding amounts of payroll tax, workers’ compensation insurance premiums and fringe benefits tax, 
which are consequential to employment, are recognised as liabilities and expenses where the employee 
benefits to which they relate have been recognised. 

 

(iii) Personnel Services for Long service leave and superannuation 
 

Screen NSW’s liabilities for long service leave and defined benefit superannuation are assumed by the Crown 
Entity. Screen NSW accounts for the liability as having been extinguished; resulting in the amount assumed 
being shown as part of the non-monetary revenue item described as “Personnel services benefits and 
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liabilities provided free of charge by the Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and 
Services”.  
 
Long service leave is measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.  This is 
based on the application of certain factors (specified in NSWTC 12/06) to employees with five or more years 
of service, using current rates of pay.  These factors were determined based on an actuarial review to 
approximate present value.  
 
The superannuation expense for the financial year is determined by using the formulae specified in the 
Treasurer’s Directions. The expense for certain superannuation schemes (i.e. Basic Benefit and First State 
Super) is calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salary. For other superannuation schemes (i.e. State 
Superannuation Scheme and State Authorities Superannuation Scheme), the expense is calculated as a 
multiple of the employees’ superannuation contributions. 

 
(j) Assets 
 

(i)  Acquisition of assets 
 
The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets controlled by 
Screen NSW. Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration 
given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount 
attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the specific requirements of other 
Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value at the date 
of acquisition.  
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction. 
 
Where payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent, i.e. 
deferred payment amount is effectively discounted at an asset-specific rate. 
 
(ii)   Capitalisation thresholds 
 
Plant and equipment and intangible assets costing $5,000 and above individually (or forming part of a 
network costing more than $5,000) are capitalised. 
 
(iii)  Revaluation of plant and equipment 
 

Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the “Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets at 
Fair Value” Policy and Guidelines Paper (TPP 07-01). This policy adopts fair value in accordance with AASB 
116 Property, Plant and Equipment.   
 
Plant and equipment is measured on an existing use basis, where there are no feasible alternative uses in the 
existing natural, legal, financial and socio-political environment.  However, in the limited circumstances where 
there are feasible alternative uses, assets are valued at their highest and best use. 
 
Fair value of plant and equipment is determined based on the best available market evidence, including 
current market selling prices for the same or similar assets.  Where there is no available market evidence, the 
asset’s fair value is measured at its market buying price, the best indicator of which is depreciated 
replacement cost. 
 
Non-specialised assets with short useful lives are measured at depreciated historical cost, as a surrogate for 
fair value. 
 
(iv) Impairment of plant and equipment 
 

As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, AASB 136 Impairment of Assets effectively is not 
applicable. AASB 136 modifies the recoverable amount test to the higher of fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost.  This means that, where an asset is already measured at fair value, 
impairment can only arise if selling costs are material.  Selling costs for Screen NSW are regarded as 
immaterial. 
 
(v) Depreciation of plant and equipment 
 

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis for all depreciable assets so as to write off the depreciable 
amount of each asset as it is consumed over its useful life to Screen NSW.  
 
All material separately identifiable components of assets are depreciated over their shorter useful lives. 

 
The standard default asset class lives are: 
   

Office furniture and fittings 10 years 
Computer equipment  4 years 
General plant and equipment 7 years 
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Depreciation rates are reviewed and determined on an annual basis. 
 
(vi) Restoration costs 
 

The estimated cost of dismantling and removing an asset and restoring the site is included in the cost of an 
asset, to the extent it is recognised as a liability. 
   
(vii) Maintenance 
 

Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to 
the replacement of a part or component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated. 
 
 
(viii) Leased assets 

 

The leasing transactions of Screen NSW are restricted to operating leases of buildings. 
 
The nature of an operating lease is such that the lessors effectively retain substantially all the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the leased items, the payments on which are included in the determination of the 
results of operations over the lease term. 
 
Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the periods in which 
they are incurred. 
 
(ix) Intangibles 
 
Screen NSW recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to 
Screen NSW and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially at 
cost. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 
All research costs are expensed. Development costs are only capitalised when certain criteria are met. 
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. 
 
Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value only if there is an active market. As there is no 
active market for Screen NSW’s intangible assets, the assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation. 
 
Screen NSW’s intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period on 10 years. 
 
Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. If the recoverable amount 
is less than its carrying amount the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is 
recognised as an impairment loss. 
 
 (x) Loans and receivables 

 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.  These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the 
transaction cost or face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less an allowance for any impairment of receivables. Any changes are recognised in the net result 
for the year when impaired, derecognised or through the amortisation process. 
 
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the 
effect of discounting is immaterial. 
 
Screen NSW provides production loans and minor cashflow loans out of a revolving facility provided by NSW 
Treasury. The loan facility balance currently amounts to $3,317,451.  Loans are recognised as they are drawn 
down by the production. Loans must be secured by a distribution agreement, a presale to a broadcaster, or a 
first ranking charge on the distribution company as well as a direction deed. 
 
The first drawdown is made net of interest, legal fees and an administration fee. Loans are shown grossed up 
as either current or non-current receivables depending on their repayment date. Interest is only taken up as 
income in the period to which it relates. The administration fee is taken up as income when the loan is made. 
The carrying amount approximates net fair value. 

 
(xi) Impairment of financial assets 
 

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss, are subject to an annual 
review for impairment. An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that 
Screen NSW will not be able to collect all amounts due. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective 
interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the net result for the year. 
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Depreciation rates are reviewed and determined on an annual basis. 
 
(vi) Restoration costs 
 

The estimated cost of dismantling and removing an asset and restoring the site is included in the cost of an 
asset, to the extent it is recognised as a liability. 
   
(vii) Maintenance 
 

Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to 
the replacement of a part or component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated. 
 
 
(viii) Leased assets 

 

The leasing transactions of Screen NSW are restricted to operating leases of buildings. 
 
The nature of an operating lease is such that the lessors effectively retain substantially all the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the leased items, the payments on which are included in the determination of the 
results of operations over the lease term. 
 
Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the periods in which 
they are incurred. 
 
(ix) Intangibles 
 
Screen NSW recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to 
Screen NSW and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially at 
cost. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 
All research costs are expensed. Development costs are only capitalised when certain criteria are met. 
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. 
 
Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value only if there is an active market. As there is no 
active market for Screen NSW’s intangible assets, the assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation. 
 
Screen NSW’s intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period on 10 years. 
 
Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. If the recoverable amount 
is less than its carrying amount the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is 
recognised as an impairment loss. 
 
 (x) Loans and receivables 

 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.  These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the 
transaction cost or face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less an allowance for any impairment of receivables. Any changes are recognised in the net result 
for the year when impaired, derecognised or through the amortisation process. 
 
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the 
effect of discounting is immaterial. 
 
Screen NSW provides production loans and minor cashflow loans out of a revolving facility provided by NSW 
Treasury. The loan facility balance currently amounts to $3,317,451.  Loans are recognised as they are drawn 
down by the production. Loans must be secured by a distribution agreement, a presale to a broadcaster, or a 
first ranking charge on the distribution company as well as a direction deed. 
 
The first drawdown is made net of interest, legal fees and an administration fee. Loans are shown grossed up 
as either current or non-current receivables depending on their repayment date. Interest is only taken up as 
income in the period to which it relates. The administration fee is taken up as income when the loan is made. 
The carrying amount approximates net fair value. 

 
(xi) Impairment of financial assets 
 

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss, are subject to an annual 
review for impairment. An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that 
Screen NSW will not be able to collect all amounts due. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective 
interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the net result for the year. 
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Depreciation rates are reviewed and determined on an annual basis. 
 
(vi) Restoration costs 
 

The estimated cost of dismantling and removing an asset and restoring the site is included in the cost of an 
asset, to the extent it is recognised as a liability. 
   
(vii) Maintenance 
 

Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to 
the replacement of a part or component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated. 
 
 
(viii) Leased assets 

 

The leasing transactions of Screen NSW are restricted to operating leases of buildings. 
 
The nature of an operating lease is such that the lessors effectively retain substantially all the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the leased items, the payments on which are included in the determination of the 
results of operations over the lease term. 
 
Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the periods in which 
they are incurred. 
 
(ix) Intangibles 
 
Screen NSW recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to 
Screen NSW and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially at 
cost. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 
All research costs are expensed. Development costs are only capitalised when certain criteria are met. 
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. 
 
Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value only if there is an active market. As there is no 
active market for Screen NSW’s intangible assets, the assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation. 
 
Screen NSW’s intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period on 10 years. 
 
Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. If the recoverable amount 
is less than its carrying amount the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is 
recognised as an impairment loss. 
 
 (x) Loans and receivables 

 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.  These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the 
transaction cost or face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less an allowance for any impairment of receivables. Any changes are recognised in the net result 
for the year when impaired, derecognised or through the amortisation process. 
 
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the 
effect of discounting is immaterial. 
 
Screen NSW provides production loans and minor cashflow loans out of a revolving facility provided by NSW 
Treasury. The loan facility balance currently amounts to $3,317,451.  Loans are recognised as they are drawn 
down by the production. Loans must be secured by a distribution agreement, a presale to a broadcaster, or a 
first ranking charge on the distribution company as well as a direction deed. 
 
The first drawdown is made net of interest, legal fees and an administration fee. Loans are shown grossed up 
as either current or non-current receivables depending on their repayment date. Interest is only taken up as 
income in the period to which it relates. The administration fee is taken up as income when the loan is made. 
The carrying amount approximates net fair value. 

 
(xi) Impairment of financial assets 
 

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss, are subject to an annual 
review for impairment. An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that 
Screen NSW will not be able to collect all amounts due. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective 
interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the net result for the year. 
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Any reversals of impairment losses are reversed through the net result for the year, where there is objective 
evidence. Reversals of impairment losses of financial assets carried at amortised cost cannot result in a 
carrying amount that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had there not been an impairment 
loss. 

 
(xii) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets 
expire; or if Screen NSW transfers the financial asset: 
 

• where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred; or 
• where Screen NSW has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if the entity has not 

retained control. 
 
Where Screen NSW has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred 
control, the asset is recognised to the extent of Screen NSW’s continuing involvement in the asset.  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. 

 
(k) Liabilities 
 

(i) Payables 
 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Screen NSW and other amounts. 
Payables are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. 
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Short-term payables with 
no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial. 
 
(ii) Employee benefits and other provisions 
 
The terms for employee benefits and other associated provisions are discussed in Note 1(i) Personnel 
Services. 
 
(iii) Other Provisions 
 
Other provisions exist when: Screen NSW has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
(iv) Liabilities - Other  
 
These amounts represent liabilities to various producers of films and other amounts. Liabilities other are 
recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. 

 
(l) Equity 
 

(i) Accumulated Funds 
 

The category ‘Accumulated Funds’ includes all current and prior period retained funds. 
 
(m) Budgeted amounts 
 
The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to Parliament in respect 
of the reporting period, as adjusted for section 24 of the PFAA where there has been a transfer of functions between 
departments. Other amendments made to the budget are not reflected in the budgeted amounts. 
 
(n) Comparative Information 
 
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is disclosed 
in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements. 
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Any reversals of impairment losses are reversed through the net result for the year, where there is objective 
evidence. Reversals of impairment losses of financial assets carried at amortised cost cannot result in a 
carrying amount that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had there not been an impairment 
loss. 

 
(xii) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets 
expire; or if Screen NSW transfers the financial asset: 
 

• where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred; or 
• where Screen NSW has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if the entity has not 

retained control. 
 
Where Screen NSW has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred 
control, the asset is recognised to the extent of Screen NSW’s continuing involvement in the asset.  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. 

 
(k) Liabilities 
 

(i) Payables 
 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Screen NSW and other amounts. 
Payables are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. 
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Short-term payables with 
no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial. 
 
(ii) Employee benefits and other provisions 
 
The terms for employee benefits and other associated provisions are discussed in Note 1(i) Personnel 
Services. 
 
(iii) Other Provisions 
 
Other provisions exist when: Screen NSW has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
(iv) Liabilities - Other  
 
These amounts represent liabilities to various producers of films and other amounts. Liabilities other are 
recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. 

 
(l) Equity 
 

(i) Accumulated Funds 
 

The category ‘Accumulated Funds’ includes all current and prior period retained funds. 
 
(m) Budgeted amounts 
 
The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to Parliament in respect 
of the reporting period, as adjusted for section 24 of the PFAA where there has been a transfer of functions between 
departments. Other amendments made to the budget are not reflected in the budgeted amounts. 
 
(n) Comparative Information 
 
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is disclosed 
in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements. 
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(o) New Australian Accounting Standards issued but not effective 
 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective 
have not been adopted for the financial reporting period ended 30 June 2012. Those relevant to Screen NSW are listed 
as follows: 
 

• AASB 9 and AASB 2010-7 regarding financial instruments 
• AASB 13 and AASB 2011-8 regarding fair value measurement 
• AASB 119, AASB 2011-10 and AASB 2011-11 regarding employee benefits 
• AASB 1053 and AASB 2010-2 regarding differential reporting 
• AASB 2010-10 regarding removal of fixed dates for first time adopters 
• AASB 2011-2 regarding Trans Tasman Convergence – RDR 
• AASB 2011-3 regarding orderly adoption of changes to the ABS GFS Manual 
• AASB 2011-6 regarding RDR and relief from consolidation 
• AASB 2011-9 regarding presentation of items of other comprehensive income 
• AASB 2011-12 regarding Interpretation 20 
• AASB 2011-13 regarding AASB 1049 and GAAP/GFS harmonisation 
• AASB 2012-1 regarding fair value measurement- reduced disclosure requirements 

 
These standards / interpretations are not considered to have a material impact. 
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2.  Expenses Excluding Losses 
 
 2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 

(a) Board members   
Allowances – Board members * 63 82 
Superannuation – defined contribution plans 6 7 
Payroll tax  3 4 
 72 93 

* 2010-11 includes 2009-10 Allowances paid in 2010-11.   
   
(b) Personnel services   
Salaries and wages (including recreation leave) 1,917 1,920 
Superannuation – defined benefit plans* 11 0 
Superannuation – defined contribution plans 144 163 
Long service leave* 33 11 
Workers compensation insurance 9 11  
Payroll tax and fringe benefits tax 124 70 

 2,238 2,175 

   
* These are provided free of charge by the Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services 

and a corresponding amount is accounted for in income as grants and contributions in Note 3(b). 
   
   
(c) Other operating expenses include the following:   
Auditor’s remuneration – audit of the financial statements 38 61 
Auditor’s remuneration – other services 15 0 
Advertising 9 13 
Communications / IT 119 61 
Consultancies 114 66 
Corporate services 10 0 
Bad and Doubtful debts 0 91 
External assessors and advisors 148 405 
Hosted workshops and events 80 80 
Insurance 4 1 
Legal fees 178 231 
Pepper investors payments 20 0 
Marketing and promotional activities 41 91 
Staff Development 31 38 
Production attraction services 107 88 
Office and administration costs 78 104 
Travel and accommodation 81 113 
Rental and office accommodation expenses 190 261 
Repairs and routine maintenance* 0 63 

  1,263 1,767 

   
*Reconciliation – Total maintenance   
Maintenance expense – contracted labour and other (non-employee related), as above 0 63 
Total maintenance expenses included in Note 2(b) + (c) 0 63 

   
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense   
Depreciation - Plant and equipment 24 27 
Amortisation – Intangibles 6 0 
 30 27 

   
(e) Grants and subsidies   
Grants to other organisations:   
   Aurora Script Development Workshops 86 176 
   Australian Children’s Television Foundation 115 115 
   Industry Audience Development  437 455 
   Visual FX Scheme 83 99 
   Production Finance Fund 6,521 7,557 
   Project / Script Development 1,089 1,238 
   Regional Screen Service Providers 332 80 
   Regional Filming Fund 328 371 
   Emerging Filmmakers Fund 169 291 
  Interactive Media Funds 528 0 
  Other industry promotion 71 93 

 9,759 10,475 

 

22

finanCial stateMents neW south Wales offiCe of filM and television 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – NEW SOUTH WALES FILM AND TELEVISION OFFICE  

  

 

 
 Expensed 

 
$’000 

Forward years 
commitments 

$’000 

Total 
 

$’000 
(f) Details of funding expensed 11/12 and forward years 
commitments 
 

   

Aurora Script Development Workshops 86 0 86 
Australian Children’s Television Foundation 115 0 115 
Industry Development Fund 437 102 539 
Visual FX Scheme 83 0 83 
Production Finance Fund 6,521 434 6,955 
Project / Script Development 1,089 127 1,216 
Regional Screen Service Providers 332 38 370 
Regional Filming Fund 328 144 472 
Emerging Filmmakers Fund 169 45 214 
Interactive Media Funds 528 246 774 
Other industry promotion 71 0 71 
 9,759 1,136 10,895 

The above expensed and forward years commitments excludes GST. 
 
3.  Revenue 
 
 2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 

(a) Investment revenue   
Interest 505 522 

 505 522 

   
(b) Grants and contributions   
Recurrent Grant from Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and 
Services 

8,527 13,866 

Capital Grant from Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and 
Services 

44 44 

Grants from State Budget Sector 774 0 

 9,345 13,910 

   
(c) Other revenue   
Project Development returns 28 47 
Production Investment returns 273 358 
Recovery of costs incurred – Funds held on behalf of investors in motion pictures 0 137 
Administration Fees 112 151 
Personnel services benefits and liabilities provided free of charge by the Department of 
Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services. 

  

    Superannuation – defined benefit 11 0 
    Long Service Leave 32 11 
Other revenue 81 72 
 537 776 

 
4.  Gain / (loss) on disposal 
 

 2012 
$’000 

2011 
$’000 

Gain / (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment   
Proceeds from disposal 0 0 
Written down value of assets disposed (16) (3) 

Net gain / (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment (16) (3) 

 
5.  Service Groups of the NSW Film and Television Office 
 
Recurrent and Capital grant funding from the Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and 
Services is provided to Screen NSW through the Department’s Tourism, Gaming and Arts service group. 
 
This service group covers promoting New South Wales to domestic and international tourism markets, fostering a 
sustainable, professional, creative and diverse cultural sector, and ensuring a vibrant and responsible hospitality 
sector. 
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6.  Current Assets – Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 2012 
$’000 

2011 
$’000 

Cash at bank and on hand 9,022 10,447 

 9,022 10,447 

 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash on hand, short 
term deposits and bank overdraft. 
 
Cash and cash equivalent assets recognised in the statement of financial position are reconciled at the end of the 
financial year to the statement of cash flows as follows: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents (per statement of financial position) 9,022 10,447 
Closing cash and cash equivalents (per statement of cash flows) 9,022 10,447 

 
Refer Note 19 for details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from financial instruments. 
 
7.  Current Assets - Receivables 
 
 2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 
Current   
Sale of goods and services 91 148 
GST 125 167 
Less: Allowance for impairment (GST) 0 (10) 
Interest Receivable 178 299 
Loan facilities 359 65 
Less: Allowance for impairment (59) (59) 

 694 610 

 
Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including financial assets that are either past due or 
impaired, are disclosed in Note 19. 
 
Movement in the allowance for impairment 
 

 
2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 
Balance at 1 July 69 150 

Amounts written off during the year (10) 0 
Amounts recovered during the year 0 (91) 
Increase / (decrease) in allowance recognised in net result 0 10 

Balance at 30 June 59 69 

 
8.  Non-Current Assets – Plant and Equipment 
 
 Plant and 

equipment 
Total 

 $’000 $’000 
At 30 June 2011 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 168 168 
Accumulated depreciation  (119) (119) 
Net Carrying Amount 49 49 

   
At 30 June 2012 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 57 57 
Accumulated depreciation  (48) (48) 
Net Carrying Amount 9 9 

 
Reconciliation 
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current reporting 
period is set out below. 
 
 Plant and 

equipment 
Total 

 $’000 $’000 

Year ended 30 June 2012   
Net carrying amount at start of year 49 49 
Additions 0 0 
Disposals (111) (111) 
Depreciation expenses (24) (24) 
Depreciation written back on disposal 95 95 

Net carrying amount at end of year 9 9 
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 Plant and 
equipment 

Total 

 $’000 $’000 

At 30 June 2010 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 171 171 
Accumulated depreciation (92) (92) 

Net Carrying Amount 79 79 

   
At 30 June 2011 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 168 168 
Accumulated depreciation (119) (119) 

Net Carrying Amount 49 49 

 
Reconciliation 
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the previous reporting 
period is set out below. 
 
 Plant and 

equipment 
Total 

 $’000 $’000 
Year ended 30 June 2011   
Net carrying amount at start of year 79 79 
Additions 0 0 
Disposals (3) (3) 
Depreciation expenses (27) (27) 
Depreciation written back on disposal 0 0 
Net carrying amount at end of year 49 49 

 
9.  Non-Current Assets – Intangible 
 
 Software Total 
 $’000 $’000 

At 30 June 2011 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 37 37 
Accumulated depreciation  0 0 

Net Carrying Amount 37 37 

   
At 30 June 2012 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 77 77 
Accumulated depreciation  (6) (6) 

Net Carrying Amount 71 71 

 
Reconciliation 
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current reporting period is 
set out below. 
 
 Software Total 
 $’000 $’000 

Year ended 30 June 2012   
Net carrying amount at start of year 37 37 
Additions 40 40 
Disposals 0 0 
Amortisation expenses (6) (6) 
Amortisation written back on disposal 0 0 

Net carrying amount at end of year 71 71 

 

 Software Total 
 $’000 $’000 

At 1 July 2010 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 0 0 
Accumulated depreciation  0 0 

Net Carrying Amount 0 0 

   
At 30 June 2011 – fair value   
Gross carrying amount 37 37 
Accumulated depreciation  0 0 

Net Carrying Amount 37 37 
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Reconciliation 
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current reporting period is 
set out below. 
 
 Software Total 
 $’000 $’000 
Year ended 30 June 2011   
Net carrying amount at start of year 0 0 
Additions 37 37 
Disposals 0 0 
Amortisation expenses 0 0 
Amortisation written back on disposal 0 0 
Net carrying amount at end of year 37 37 

 
10.  Restricted Assets 
 
Cash at bank includes 2012: $2,958,253 (2011: $3, 252,448). This amount represents the available cash component 
of the loan facilities, a revolving fund with a current balance of $3,317,451 that is used to assist film production by 
way of repayable advances secured against guaranteed payments from broadcasters, distributors and exhibitors. 
This balance fluctuates depending on the amount of loans outstanding at any one time. 
 
11.  Current Liabilities – Payables 
 
 2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 

Personnel services payable 38 32 
Creditors 4,933 3,284 

 4,971 3,316 

 
Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a maturity analysis of the above payables are 
disclosed in Note 19. 
 
12.  Current Liabilities – Provisions 
 

Personnel Services Provisions 
2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 
Employee benefits and related on-costs   
Recreation Leave 180 181 
Long Service Leave 12 6 
 192 187 

   
Aggregate employee benefits and related on-costs   
Provisions – current 192 187 
Personnel Services payable (Note 11) 38 32 
 238 219 

 
13.  Current / Non-Current Liabilities - Other 
 

 2012 
$’000 

2011 
$’000 

Current   
Other 0 16 
 0 16 

   
Non-current   
Funds held on behalf of investors in motion pictures 0 0 

 0 0 
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14.  Commitments for expenditure 
 

 2012 
$’000 

2011 
$’000 

(a) Capital Commitments   
As at 30 June 2012 Screen NSW had no capital commitments (2011: Nil).   
   
(b) Other Expenditure Commitments   
As at 30 June 2012 Screen NSW had funding commitments approved but not paid: 
Not later than one year 1,244 1,076 
Later than one year and not later than five years 6 0 

 1,250 1,076 

The total expenditure commitments include GST of $113,600 (2011: $107,600). 
   
(c) Operating Lease Commitments   
As at 30 June 2012 Screen NSW had no operating lease commitments (2011: Nil).   
 
15.  Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
The Board is unaware of the existence of any Contingent Liabilities or Contingent Assets as at balance date (2011, 
Nil). 
 
16.  Budget Review 
 
The budget process is finalised prior to the beginning of each financial year. Events can arise after that date that 
necessitates variations to the planned activities of Screen NSW for that year. This in turn may cause variations to the 
financial activities. Major variations between the budget and actual amounts are outlined below. 
 
Net result 
 
The actual net result was greater than budget by $2.891m, primarily due to greater than budgeted total expenses of 
$3.636 million offset by greater than budgeted revenue of $761,000. A major component of greater than budgeted 
total expenses was in Screen NSW funding programs. The net result was within the revised net cost of service limit 
of $3.4 million approved by the Treasurer. 
 
Assets and liabilities  
 
Net Assets were less than budget by $2.901 million due to greater than budgeted current liabilities of $2.404 million 
and less than budgeted total assets of $709,000. Current liabilities include an amount of $1.979 million payable to the 
Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services following the reversal of an incorrectly 
raised debtor invoice. 
 
Cash flows  
 
Net Cash Flows from operating activities were greater than budget by $733,000. This is comprised of greater than 
budgeted payments of $1.964 million offset by greater than budgeted receipts of $1.231 million. 
 
Net Cash Flows from Investing and Financing activities were less than budget by $0.361m, primarily due to fewer 
advances being made from the loan facilities  
 
 
17.  Reconciliation of net result for the year to cash flows from operating activities 
 
 2012 

$’000 
2011 

$’000 
Net cash used on operating activities (1,088) 1,646 
Depreciation and amortisation (30) (27) 
Allowance for impairment 0 (91) 
Adjustment for GST receivable  impairment 0 10 
Decrease / (increase) in Payables (1,655) (1,073) 
Decrease / (increase) in Provisions (5) 6 
Decrease / (increase) in Other Liabilities 16 137 
Increase / (decrease) in Receivables (213) 63 
Net gain / (loss) on sale of plant and equipment (16) (3) 
Net result  (2,991) 668 
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18.  Project / Script Development and Project Finance Fund 
 
The following table provides details of funding activities for Project / Script Development and the Production Finance 
Fund. 
 
Accounting policies are detailed at Notes 1(f) and 1(g). 
 
 Grants 

Provided 
$’000 

Returns 
Received 

$’000 
Project / Script Development   
Period ending 30 June 2011 1,238 47 
Period ending 30 June 2012 1,089 28 
   
Production Investment   
Period ending 30 June 2011 7,557 358 
Period ending 30 June 2012 6,521 273 
 
In any given year there is no correlation between Grants Provided and Returns Received. Returns are dependent 
upon the prevailing terms of trade and the profitability of a project, and as such, the likelihood and timing of returns 
cannot be quantified accurately. 
 
19.  Financial instruments 
 
Screen NSW’s principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arise directly from 
Screen NSW’s operations or are required to finance Screen NSW’s operations. Screen NSW does not enter into or 
trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes. 
 
(a) Financial instrument categories 
 
Financial Assets 
 
 
Class: 

Note Category Carrying 
Amount 

2012 
$’000 

Carrying 
Amount 

2011 
$’000 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 N/A 9,022 10,447 
     
Trade and other receivables 

(1)
 7 Loans and receivables (at amortised cost) 210 388 

     
Loan facilities (Revolve Fund) 7 Loans and receivables (at amortised cost) 359 65 
     

Financial Liabilities 
 
 
Class: 

Note Category Carrying 
Amount 

2012 
$’000 

Carrying 
Amount 

2011 
$’000 

Trade and other payables 
(2)

 
11 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost 

4,971 3,316 

     
Fund held on behalf of investors in 
motion pictures 

13 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost 

0 0 

Notes 
1. Excludes statutory receivables and prepayments (i.e. not within scope of AASB 7). 
2. Excludes statutory payables and unearned revenue (i.e. not within scope of AASB 7). 

 
(b) Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of Screen NSW’s debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations, 
resulting in a financial loss to Screen NSW. The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally represented by the 
carrying amount of the financial assets (net of any allowance for impairment). 
 
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of Screen NSW, including cash, receivables and authority deposits. No 
collateral is held by Screen NSW. Screen NSW has not granted any financial guarantees. 
 
Credit risk associated with Screen NSW’s financial assets other than receivables is managed through the selection of 
counterparties and establishment of minimum credit rating standards. 
 
Cash 
 
Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances within the NSW Treasury Banking System. Interest is earned on 
daily bank balances at the monthly average NSW Treasury Corporation (TCorp) 11am unofficial cash rate, adjusted 
for a management fee to NSW Treasury. The TCorp Hour Glass cash facility is discussed in para (d) below. 
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 Loan Facilities 
 
All amounts outstanding in relation to Production Loans are recognised as amounts receivable at balance date. 
Collectability of Production Loans is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s 
Directions are followed to recover outstanding amounts including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be 
uncollectable are written off. An allowance for impairment is raised when there is evidence that the amount cannot be 
collected. 
 
Production Loans are secured by: 
 

• Loan Agreement with applicant; and 
 
• Deed of Direction with applicant directing the distributor to make payment of the distribution guarantee to 

Screen NSW in repayment of the loan; and 
 
• Charge from the distributor over the distributor’s assets / Letter of Credit / Bank Guarantee / Corporate 

Guarantee from an approved parent or related company of the distributor or other such security as 
determined by Screen NSW. 

 
Interest rates of between 2% and 4% are payable on the basis that the loans will be paid on time. A penalty interest 
rate of 90 Day Bank Bill Rate (at the time of approval of the loan) plus 2% is charged on amounts not paid on the due 
date. 
 
Receivables – trade debtors 
 

All trade debtors are recognised as amounts at balance date. Collectability of trade debtors is reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s Directions are followed to recover outstanding amounts, 
including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. An allowance for impairment is 
raised when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be able to collect all amounts due. This evidence 
includes past experience, and current and expected changes in economic conditions and debtor credit ratings. No 
interest is earned on trade debtors. Sales are made on 30 day terms. 
 
Screen NSW is not materially exposed to concentrations of credit risk to a single trade debtor or group of debtors. 
Based on past experience, debtors that are not past due (2012: $15k; 2011: $72k) and not less than 3 months past 
due (2012: $6k; 2011 Nil) are not considered impaired and together these represent 70% (2011: 55%) of the total 
trade debtors. There are no debtors which are currently not past due or impaired whose terms have been 
renegotiated. 
 

The only financial assets that are past due or impaired are ‘sales of goods and services’ in the ‘receivables’ category 
of the statement of financial position. 

 Total 
1,2

 
$’000 

Past due but not impaired 
$’000 

Considered impaired 
$’000 

2012    
< 3 months overdue 6 6 0 
3 months – 6 months overdue 1 1 0 
> 6 months overdue 66 7 59 
    
2011    
> 6 months overdue 59 0 59 
 
Notes 

1. Each column in this table represents “gross receivable” 
2. The ageing analysis excludes receivables that are not past due and not impaired. Therefore, the “total” will 

not reconcile to the receivable total recognised in the statement of financial position. 
 

Authority Deposits 
 
Screen NSW has no funds placed on deposit with TCorp. 
 
Other Facilities 

 
Screen NSW has access to the following banking facilities: 
 

 2012 
$’000 

2011 
$’000 

MasterCard Limit 60 60 
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(c) Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that Screen NSW will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due. Screen 
NSW continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure adequate 
holding of high quality liquid assets. The objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of overdrafts, loans and other advances. 
 
During the current and prior years, there were no defaults of loans payable. No assets have been pledged as 
collateral. Screen NSW’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current 
assessment of risk. 
 
The liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not 
invoiced. Amounts owing to suppliers (which are unsecured) are settled in accordance with the policy set out in NSW 
TC 11/12. For small business suppliers, where terms are not specified, payment is made not later than 30 days from 
date of receipt of a correctly rendered invoice. For other suppliers, if trade terms are not specified, payment is made 
no later than the end of the month following the month in which an invoice or a statement is received. For small 
business suppliers, where payment is not made within the specified time period, simple interest must be paid 
automatically unless an existing contract specifies otherwise. For payments to other suppliers, the Head of an 
authority (or a person appointed by the Head of an authority) may automatically pay the supplier simple interest. The 
rate of interest applied during the year was 0% (2011: 0%). 
 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of Screen NSW’s financial liabilities, together with the interest rate 
exposure. 
 
Maturity analysis and interest rate exposure of financial liabilities 
 

   Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates 
 Weighted 

Average 
Effective 
Int. Rate 

Nominal 
Amount 

1
 

$’000 

Fixed 
Int. Rate 

 
$’000 

Variable 
Int. Rate  

 
$’000 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

$’000 

 
< 1 yr 

 
1 – 5 
yrs 

 
> 5 
yrs 

2012         
Payables:         
Personnel services 
payable 

0 38 0 0 38 38 0 0 

Creditors 0 4,933 0 0 4,933 4,933 0 0 
  4,971 0 0 4,971 4,971 0 0 

2011         
Payables:         
Personnel services 
payable 

0 32 0 0 32 32 0 0 

Creditors 0 3,284 0 0 3,284 3,284 0 0 
  3,316 0 0 3,316 3,316 0 0 

 
Notes: 

1. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities based 
on the earliest date on which Screen NSW can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and 
principal cash flows and therefore will not reconcile to the statement of financial position. 

 
(d) Market risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Screen NSW has no exposure to foreign currency risk and does not enter into commodity 
contracts. 

The effect on profit and equity due to a reasonably possible change in risk variable is outlined in the information 
below, for interest rate risk and other price risk. A reasonably possible change in risk variable has been determined 
after taking into account the economic environment in which Screen NSW operates and the time frame for the 
assessment (i.e. until the end of the next annual reporting period). The sensitivity analysis is based on risk exposure 
in existence at the statement of financial position date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011. The 
analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. 

Interest rate risk 

Exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily through Screen NSW’s interest bearing liabilities. This risk is minimised 
by undertaking mainly fixed rate borrowings, primarily with NSW TCorp. Screen NSW does not account for any fixed 
rate financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale. Therefore, for these financial 
instruments, a change in interest rates would not affect profit or loss or equity. A reasonably possible change of + / - 
1% is used, consistent with current trends in interest rates. The basis will be reviewed annually and amended where 
there is a structural change in the level of interest rate volatility.  30
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Screen NSW’s exposure to interest rate risk is set out below. 

 $’000 

 Carrying -1% 1% 

 Amount Result Equity Result Equity 

2012      

Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 9,022 (90) (90) 90 90 
Receivables 214 0 0 0 0 
Loan facilities (Revolve Fund) 359 0 0 0 0 
Financial liabilities      
Payables 4,971 0 0 0 0 

2011      

Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 10,447 (104) (104) 104 104 
Receivables 388 0 0 0 0 
Loan facilities (Revolve Fund) 65 0 0 0 0 
Financial liabilities      
Payables 3,316 0 0 0 0 
 

(e) Fair value compared to carrying amount 
 
Financial instruments are carried at (amortised) cost which are measured at fair value. 

 

20.  After Balance Date Events 
 
There are no events subsequent to the balance date which affect the financial information disclosed in these financial 
statements. 

 

End of the audited financial statements. 

NEW SOUTH WALES FILM AND TELEVISION OFFICE 
 

 
STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 41C(1C) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE AND AUDIT ACT 1983 

 

Pursuant to section 41C(1C) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, and in accordance with a resolution of the 
New South Wales Film & Television Office we state that: 
 

(a) the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting 
Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations), the provisions of the Public Finance and 
Audit Act 1983, the applicable clauses of the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010, and the Financial 

Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General Government Sector 
Entities or issued by the Treasurer; 

 

(b) the financial statements and notes thereto exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 
2012 and the results of the operations for the year ended on that date; 

 

(c) at the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances that would render the financial statements 
misleading or inaccurate. 

 

                                
 
Helen Wright                                          Ken Reid                                                                            
CHAIR, SCREEN NSW BOARD   CHAIR, FINANCE & AUDIT SUB COMMITTEE 

 
 
Date:        16 October 2012 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

stAteMent in ACCoRdAnCe With seCtion 41C(1C)  
of the PUBLIC FINANCE AND AUDIT ACT 1983
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Appendix 1A—pRoduCtion finAnCe pRoJeCts ContRACted 2011–12

pRoJeCt AppLiCAnt pRoduCeR(s) diReCtoR  AMount 

fACtuAL pRogRAMs

A. singLes

Make Hummus Not War Yarra Bank Films
Ned Lander,  
Trevor Graham

Trevor Graham  $40,000 

Tender
Scarlett Pictures  
Pty Ltd

Kath Shelper
Lynette 
Wallworth

 $50,000 

I Can Change Your Mind 
About Climate 

Smith&Nasht  
Pty Ltd

Simon Nasht Max Bourke  $50,000 

subtotAL  $140,000 

b. seRies

Next Stop Hollywood
Matchbox Pictures 
Pty Ltd

Cecilia Ritchie,  
Michael McMahon

Gary Doust  $60,000 

Wild Australia Wild Fury Pty Ltd Bettina Dalton
Rory 
McGuinness

 $80,000 

First Footprints
First Footprints  
Pty Ltd

Martin Butler,  
Bentley Dean

Martin Butler, 
Bentley Dean

 $90,000 

Family Confidential—
Series 2

KalMedia Pty Ltd Laurie Critchley Aviva Ziegler  $30,000 

Go Back to Where You 
Came From—Series 2

Cordell Jigsaw 
Productions Pty Ltd

Rick McPhee,  
Toni Malone

Ivan 
O’Mahoney

 $75,000 

Making Couples Happy
Heiress Films  
Pty Ltd

Jennifer Cummins
Kalita 
Corrigan

 $160,000 

Life at 7
Heiress Films  
Pty Ltd

Jennifer Cummins
Jennifer 
Peedom

 $70,000 

Bushwhacked
North One Television 
Australia Pty Ltd

Dan Goldberg,  
Colin Thrupp

Mark Barnard  $60,000 

subtotAL  $625,000 

feAtuRe

The Sapphires
Goalpost Pictures 
Australia Pty Ltd

Rosemary Blight,  
Kylie Du Fresne

Wayne Blair  $800,000 

Lore
Porchlight Films  
Pty Ltd

Liz Watts, Karsten 
Stoter, Paul Walsh, 
Gabriele Kranzelbinder

Cate 
Shortland

 $275,000 

The Rocket 
Red Lamp Films  
Pty Ltd

Sylvia Wilczynski Kim Mordaunt  $180,000 

Rekindling Venus 
Rekindling Venus 
Productions Pty Ltd

John Maynard,  
David Metcalfe

Lynette 
Wallworth

 $100,000 

The Grandmothers
The Grandmothers 
Pty Ltd

Andrew Mason,  
Philippe Carcassonne

Anne Fontaine  $600,000 

The Railway Man
Railway Man 
Productions Pty Ltd

Chris Brown
Jonathan 
Teplitzky

 $160,000 

Tracks
See Saw 
Productions Pty Ltd

Emile Sherman John Curran  $300,000 

subtotAL  $2,415,000 

ChiLdRen’s teLevision seRies

A. Live ACtion

In Your Dreams
Southern Star 
Entertainment  
Pty Ltd

Noel Price Ralf Strasser  $280,000 

Dance Academy— 
Series 3

Werner Film 
Productions Pty Ltd

Joanna Werner

Ian Watson, 
Ian Gilmour, 
Daniel 
Nettheim

 $250,000 

subtotAL  $530,000 
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pRoJeCt AppLiCAnt pRoduCeR(s) diReCtoR  AMount 

AduLt teLevision dRAMA

A. seRies

Redfern Now
Blackfella Films  
Pty Ltd

Darren Dale,  
Miranda Dear

C McKenzie,  
R Perkins,  
L Purcell,  
W Blair

 $470,000 

Rake—Series 2
Essential Media  
and Entertainment 
Pty Ltd

Ian Collie
Peter Duncan, 
Jess Hobbs, 
Jeff Walker

 $400,000 

Bikie Wars:  
Brothers In Arms

Screentime Pty Ltd
Louisa Kors,  
Peter Andrikidis

Peter 
Andrikidis

 $150,000 

Devil’s Dust
FremantleMedia 
Australia Pty Ltd

Antonia Barnard, 
Stephen Corvini

Jessica Hobbs  $250,000 

This Christmas
Jungleboys FTV  
Pty Ltd

Andy Walker, Phil Lloyd
Trent 
O’Donnell

 $130,000 

Puberty Blues
Southern Star 
Entertainment  
Pty Ltd

John Edwards,  
Imogen Banks

Glendyn Ivin  $350,000 

subtotAL  $1,750,000 

b. teLeMovie

Mabo
Blackfella Films  
Pty Ltd

Darren Dale,  
Miranda Dear

Rachel Perkins  $150,000 

Top Of The Lake
See Saw Films  
Pty Ltd

Emile Sherman Jane Campion  $500,000 

The Great Mint Swindle 
Cordell Jigsaw 
Productions Pty Ltd

Michael Cordell, Paul 
Bennett, Russell Vines

Geoff Bennett  $85,000 

Dripping in Chocolate
Southern Star 
Entertainment  
Pty Ltd

Julie McGauran,  
Sarah Smith

Mark Joffe  $240,000 

subtotAL  $975,000 

tRAnsMediA

After Six-Four
Freehand 
Productions Pty Ltd

Ester Harding Jiao Chen  $15,000 

Micro Nation
Freehand 
Productions Pty Ltd

Linda Ujuk
Andrew 
Garrick

 $50,000 

subtotAL  $65,000 

totAL  $6,500,000

BreaKdoWn

Applications received 60

Applications contracted 32

Percentage of applications contracted 53.33

tYpe nuMbeR ContRACted AMount % of totAL spent

Factual Programs—Single 3 $140,000 2

Factual Programs—Series 8 $625,000 10

Feature 7 $2,415,000 37

Childrens Television Series—Live Action 2 $530,000 8

Adult Television Drama—Series 6 $1,750,000 27

Adult Television Drama—Telemovie 4 $975,000 15

Transmedia 2 $65,000 1

totAL 32 $6,500,000 100
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Appendix 1b— AdditionAL pRoduCtion finAnCe funding  
to existing pRoJeCts 2011–12

pRoJeCt AppLiCAnt pRoduCeR(s) diReCtoR AMount

feAtuRe

The Hunter Porchlight Films Pty Ltd Vincent Sheehan Daniel Nettheim  $7,500 

tv seRies

The Straits Pixa House Ltd
Penny Chapman, 
Helen Panckhurst

Catriona McKenzie, Peter 
Andrikidis, Tony Tise

 $9,938 

totAL  $17,438

Appendix 1C—pRoduCtion investMent RetuRns 2011–12

Production Finance Returns $273,000

Appendix 1d—pRoduCtion LoAn finAnCe fund ContRACted LoAns 2011–12

pRoJeCt AppLiCAnt tYpe AMount AppRoved

The Sapphires The Sapphires Production Pty Ltd Production Finance Loan $359,198

totAL $359,198

Appendix 2—RegionAL fiLMing fund pRoJeCts ContRACted 2011–12

pRoJeCt tYpe AppLiCAnt Region RegionAL 
nsW spend

AMount 
funded

First Footprints Feature
First Footprints  
Pty Ltd

 Wollemi 
National Park 

 $63,440  $20,000 

The Grandmothers Feature
The Grandmothers 
Pty Ltd

Seal Rocks  $936,350  $100,000 

The Jungle Feature
Mysterious Light 
Pty Ltd

Byron Bay  $160,324  $56,113 

Gods Of Wheat Street TV Series
The Gods of Wheat 
Street Pty Ltd

Casino and 
Northern Rivers

 $2,113,685  $100,000 

totAL  $3,273,799  $276,113

Appendix 3A—deveLopMent: eARLY stAge deveLopMent 2011–12

titLe AppLiCAnt WRiteR(s) AMount

feAtuRes

Breath Breath Productions Tim Winton  $25,000 

Em Matthew Dabner t/a Gate 41 Matthew Dabner  $20,000 

Enemy Alien Tree (Australia) Pty Ltd Joan Sauers  $23,000 

Golden People Room Four Films Pty Ltd Glen Dolman  $8,000 

Jasper Jones Rebecca O’Brien Rebecca O’Brien  $10,000 

Mr & Mrs Montague Elissa Down Films Pty Ltd Elissa Down  $20,000 

Old Bastards Empress Road Productions Pty Ltd Don Reid, Fiona Press  $7,000 

Outside Distracted Media Pty Ltd Carlo Ledesma  $8,000 

Peril Soft Tread Enterprises Pty Ltd Nicholas Hammond  $7,000 

Ships In The Night James Ricketson James Ricketson  $18,000 

The Day My World Ended Druid Films Pty Ltd Tobias Anderson  $10,000 
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titLe AppLiCAnt WRiteR(s) AMount

The Eulogy I Kandy Films Pty Ltd
Janine Hosking,  
Katey Grusovin

 $20,000 

The Legend of Hua Mulan Arclight Films International Pty Ltd Deborah Chow  $15,000 

The Stockpicker Enjoy Entertainment Pty Ltd Dave Warner  $10,000 

Thruster 321 Benjamin Davies Scott Roberts  $10,000 

Travelling Without Moving Emma Vuletic Emma Vuletic  $5,000 

Firewall
HNT Investments Pty Ltd the Trustee 
for HNT Investment Property Trust t/a 
Filmworks Co

Janice Eymann,  
David Rollins

 $18,000 

Gulf Country David Caesar
David Caesar,  
Peter Ivan

 $10,000 

subtotAL  $244,000 

teLevision dRAMA—seRies

Devil’s Dust
Bravado Productions,  
Fremantle Media Australia

Kris Mrksa  $15,000 

Bruce & Barry:  
Men In Suits

Sharon Jacobson Sharon Jacobson  $15,000 

The Lostronauts Blink Films Pty Ltd Michael Bourchier  $10,250 

Bad Mum
G Pacialeo and P J Sullivan  
t/a Benchmark Films

Sally Madgwick  $10,000 

subtotAL  $50,250 

teLevision dRAMA—teLeMovie

Never Walk Alone Wonderland Media Pty Ltd Dora Tan  $15,000 

subtotAL  $15,000 

ChiLdRens teLevision—Live ACtion

Dirt
Anne Elizabeth Parnell  
t/a Frangipani Films

John O’Brien,  
Richard Lindsell

 $12,000 

subtotAL  $12,000 

ChiLdRens teLevision—AniMAtion

The Adventures of Yindi
Jeffery McDonald  
t/a Leapfrog Productions

Bridget Lyon  $5,000 

Spongo and Fuzz A Stark Production Pty Ltd Kym Goldsworthy  $21,700 

Babyccino Mememe Productions Pty Ltd
Angela Moore,  
Cate McQuillen,  
Lucy Cotter

 $15,000 

Reading Eggs RE Productions Pty Ltd Tammy Burnstock  $13,000 

Billy Bilby Ambience Entertainment Pty Ltd Gina Roncoli  $15,000 

subtotAL  $69,700 

fACtuAL—seRies

The Life Series 
—Format Bible

Heiress Films Pty Ltd  $10,000 

Unnamed project I Kandy Films Pty Ltd
Janine Hosking,  
Katey Grusovin

 $15,600 

subtotAL  $25,600 

fACtuAL—singLe

Plumpton High Babies  
10 Years On

Australian Documentaries Pty Ltd Aviva Ziegler  $6,000 

subtotAL  $6,000 

fACtuAL—feAtuRe

The Sunnyboy Jotz Productions Pty Ltd Kaye Harrison  $12,000 

subtotAL  $12,000 
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titLe AppLiCAnt WRiteR(s) AMount

business pLAn

The Bridge Fund See Pictures  $3,000 

Ministry of Film The Ministry of Film Pty Ltd  $5,000 

subtotAL  $8,000 

totAL  $442,550

Applications received 142

Applications contracted 36

Percentage of applications contracted 25

AMount %

Features $244,000 55.1

Factual Programs $43,600 9.9

Television Drama $65,250 14.7

Childrens Television $81,700 18.5

Business Plans $8,000 1.8

totAL $442,550 100

Appendix 3b—AppRoved but unContRACted 2011–12

titLe AppLiCAnt WRiteR(s) AMount

Page 8 Blackfella Films Pty Ltd Louis Nowra  $25,100

Appendix 3C— deveLopMent: AdvAnCed deveLopMent  
And MARketing 2011–12

titLe AppLiCAnt WRiteR(s) AMount

feAtuRes

A Life Half Lived
G Pacialeo and P J Sullivan  
t/a Benchmark Films

Denie Pentecost  $5,000 

Almost French
Essential Media and 
Entertainment Pty Ltd

Kate Dennis  $20,000 

Almost French
Essential Media and 
Entertainment Pty Ltd

Kate Dennis  $5,000 

Courage Hypergiant Films Pty Ltd Damien Power  $6,500 

Daughter of the Dragon
Essential Media and 
Entertainment Pty Ltd

 $2,500 

Double Honour Killing + slate Films and Casting Temple Bill Bennett  $5,000 

F*****d, A Romance Porchlight Films Pty Ltd  $6,000 

Falls Creek, Black Echoes, 
A Murder of Crows

Prodigy Movies Pty Ltd  $5,000 

Harvest Goalpost Pictures Leon Ford  $9,250 

Monkey See Saw Films Pty Ltd Justine Monjo  $2,500 

Music Of My Life, Son of A Gun Southern Light Films Pty Ltd  $6,000 

Number Ten Ox, The Bridge of Birds VisPop Pty Ltd John Dietz  $1,570 

Remarkable Creatures Galvanized Film Group Pty Ltd Jan Sardi  $1,000 

Rockpool Dragonet Films Pty Ltd Sonia Whiteman  $6,000 

Sentido Babilu Films Pty Ltd Andrew Lawrence  $5,000 

Shadows From The Sky Courage Films Pty Ltd Viv Young  $5,000 

Synchronicity GFN Productions Pty Ltd Marissa Goodhill  $35,000 
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titLe AppLiCAnt WRiteR(s) AMount

Synchronicity GFN Productions Pty Ltd Marissa Goodhill  $5,000 

The 7th Day Storm Alley Entertainment Pty Ltd Ben Ripley  $22,500 

The Dreaming Odin’s Eye Entertainment  $5,000 

The Great Macgowan Films Pty Ltd Tony McNamara  $13,000 

The Mechanicals Green Park Pictures Pty Ltd Leon Ford  $4,000 

The Post Office, Berlin Syndrome Aquarius Films Pty Ltd  $6,000 

The Second Coming Vivid Films Pty Ltd David Barker  $12,500 

Training Grounds 360 Productions Pty Ltd Andy Briggs  $10,000 

Defiant
Honour Killing Productions  
Pty Ltd 

 Bill Bennett  $22,000 

subtotAL  $226,320 

teLevision dRAMA—seRies

Some Say Love Freehand Productions Pty Ltd Nicola Parry  $15,000 

subtotAL  $15,000 

ChiLdRens teLevision—Live ACtion

Blue Zoo AirPig Productions Pty Ltd
Dean Cropp,  
Sally Browning

 $3,000 

Hoopla The Content Agency Pty Ltd John Armstrong  $4,189 

Blink Films Market Travel Blink Films Pty Ltd  $5,000 

subtotAL  $12,189 

ChiLdRens teLevision—AniMAtion

Bubble Bath Bay
Essential Media and 
Entertainment Pty Ltd

Clare Madsen  $8,000 

Spongo and Fuzz A Stark Production Pty Ltd Kym Goldsworthy  $5,000 

Dirtgirlworld Mememe Productions Pty Ltd Cate McQuillen  $4,000 

subtotAL  $17,000 

fACtuAL—seRies

Climate Chasers Angels Television Pty Ltd Sarah Lambert  $5,000 

subtotAL  $5,000 

fACtuAL—singLe

Chemical Love
Rewired Productions Pty Ltd, 
Serendipity Productions

Sally Aitken  $3,000 

subtotAL  $3,000 

fACtuAL—feAtuRe

Aim High In Creation Anna Broinowski Anna Broinowski  $15,000 

subtotAL  $15,000 

MuLti pLAtfoRM

After Six-Four Freehand Productions Pty Ltd Jiao Chen  $15,000 

Warco Maniaty Media Pty Ltd Tony Maniaty  $5,000 

The Feds—slate The Feds Australia Pty Ltd  $5,000 

The Hunt For Agent Eclipse The Digital Project Factory Ltd  $4,000 

subtotAL  $29,000 

totAL  $322,509
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BreaKdoWn

Applications received 63

Applications contracted 41

Percentage of applications contracted 65

AMount %

Features $226,320 70.2

Factual Programs $23,000 7.1

Television Drama $15,000 4.7

Childrens Television $29,189 9.1

Multi platform $29,000 9.0

totAL $322,509 100

Appendix 3d—deveLopMent: speCiAL initiAtives funded 2011–12

pRoJeCt titLe AppLiCAnts CoMpAnY AMount

Scar (Flash Black Short Film Initiative 
with Screen Australia)

Rhea Stephenson Wedgetail Media Pty Ltd  $20,000 

She.Say (Flash Black Short Film 
Initiative with Screen Australia)

David Jowsey
The Trustee for 
Oombarra Productions

 $20,000 

The Chuck In (Flash Black Short Film 
Initiative with Screen Australia)

Ryan Griffen
Brown Cab Productions 
Pty Ltd

 $20,000 

The Oyster Man (Flash Black Short 
Film Initiative with Screen Australia)

John Harvey
Brown Cab Productions 
Pty Ltd

 $10,000 

Go Back to Where You Came From 
—Series 2 (CALD—Trainee Initiative 
with SBS)

Toni Malone
Cordell Jigsaw 
Productions Pty Ltd

 $8,251 

Once Upon A Time In Punchbowl 
(CALD—Trainee Initiative with SBS)

Craig Graham
Once Upon A Time 
Productions Pty Ltd

 $5,829 

Jeff Gomez Masterclass  $7,500 

AAMELP 2011–12  
(Screen NSW Contribution)

 $43,276 

International Co–Pro Sponsorship LA  $2,342 

Inside Out / Outside In  $15,000 

totAL  $152,198

Appendix 3e— funding ReCeived bY nsW pRoduCeRs  
undeR the notiCe of eLeCtion 2011–12

pRoJeCt AppLiCAnt enteRpRise pRoduCeR 
equitY AMount

A Common 
Purpose

Factual Looking Glass Pictures Pty Ltd $16,000 $16,000 

After Six-Four Factual Freehand Productions Pty Ltd $15,000 $15,000 

Brandon Goes 
Bush

Factual North One Television Australia $15,000 $15,000 

First Footprints Factual First Footprints Pty Ltd $40,000 $40,000 

Plumpton High 
Babies 10 Years on

Factual Southern Pictures Pty Ltd $6,000 $6,000 

The Rocket Feature Red Lamp Films Pty Ltd $30,600 $30,600 

Then They Came 
for Me (1)

Factual I Kandy Films Pty Ltd $27,850 $27,850 

totAL  $6,000  $144,450  $150,450
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Appendix 4A—sLingshot—eMeRging fiLMMAkeRs fund

titLe AppLiCAnt tYpe  AMount 

Sam’s Story Night Kitchen Productions Short Film—Drama  $30,000 

Reason To Smile Rene Alberto Hernandez t/a Passion Pictures Short Film—Drama  $30,000 

Convenience
S G McKeith and T W McKeith And H V Minchin  
t/a SamTomNel

Short Film—Drama  $30,000 

The Gift Emerald Productions Pty Ltd Short Film—Drama  $30,000 

Awake G Pacialeo and P J Sullivan t/a Benchmark Films Short Film—Drama  $30,000 

Woody SBB Productions
Short Film—
Animation

 $30,000 

totAL  $180,000

Appendix 4b— sLingshot—eMeRging fiLMMAkeRs fund— 
tRAveL/MARketing gRAnts

titLe AppLiCAnt tYpe usAge AMount

Attach Boat to Motor
Colin Elphick, 
Nathan Lewis

Short Drama
Contribution to Marketing Costs and 
Travel to Prague Short Film Festival 

$2,500

Appendix 4C—sLingshot—festivAL tRAveL

AppLiCAnts titLe tRAveL to AMount

Emile Sherman 33 Postcards Shanghai Film Festival  $5,000 

David Jowsey Burning Man Toronto Film Festival  $5,000 

Kriv Stenders The Hunter Toronto Film Festival  $3,726 

David Jowsey, Ivan Sen Project Manta Jackson Hole Wildlife Festival  $5,000 

Penny Chapman Mrs Carey’s Concert IDFA  $4,544 

Julia Leigh Wish You Were Here Sundance—Kieran Darcy-Smith  $4,000 

Mitzi Goldman The Woodlies Stuttgart Int. Animation Festival  $2,000 

Paola Morabito, John Connell The Missing Key Stuttgart Int. Animation Festival  $3,000 

Tom McKeith Ochre and Ink Aspen Shortsfest  $2,384 

Kylie du Fresne, Wayne Blair The Sapphires Cannes  $7,000 

Julius Avery Yardbird Cannes  $3,500 

totAL  $45,154

BreaKdoWn

Applications received 17

Applications contracted 11

Percentage of applications contracted 65

Appendix 4d—vfx pLACeMent sCheMe

AppLiCAnt host CoMpAnY AReA of foCus AMount

Tyson Donnelly Fuel VFX Compositor  $18,500 

Michael Solon Dr D Compositor  $18,500 

Daniel Nathan Cooper Dr D Compositor  $18,500 

Leon Li-Aun Sooi Flying Bark 3D Artist  $18,500 

Frieder Czeschia Flying Bark 3D Artist  $18,500 

totAL  $92,500
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Appendix 4e—sLingshot—pRoduCeR extension sCheMe

Donna Chang  $20,000 

Mitch Stanley  $20,000 

Maria Tran  $20,000

Appendix 4f—sLingshot—Above-the-Line AttAChMent

AttAChee AttAChMent RoLe AttAChed to AMount

Boyd Britton Director Roast Beef Productions, Warp Films, Windfall Films  $9,000 

Lauren Edwards Producer Goalpost Pictures  $5,000 

Tanya Goldberg Director MacGowan Films  $5,000 

Will Kuether Director Fox Writers Studio  $8,370 

totAL  $27,370

BreaKdoWn

Applications received 11

Applications contracted 4

Percentage of applications contracted 36

Appendix 5A—AssessoRs pRoduCtion And deveLopMent

Alan Harris Julia Overton Pat Ferns

Amanda Higgs Julie Lynn Paul Mezey

Amanda Morrison Justin Donoghue Paul Welsch

Andy Cox Karen Radzyner Penny Robins

Ann Folland Kelrick Martin Peter Giles

Brian Gilbert Linda Tizard Sally Regan

Carolyn Johnson Lorelle Adamson Sandra Alexander

Donna Andrews Matt Carrol Sheila Hanahan Taylor

Fotini Manikakis Meg Le Fauve Stefan Moore

Ian Walker Megan Harding Sue Masters

Jennifer Hughes Melissa Lucashenko Sue Taylor

Jenny Day Michelle Rickerby Susan Cartsonis

Jo Forte Mitchell Stanley Susan MacKinnon

Joan Sauers Navid Mcilhargey Susie Campbell

Appendix 5b—AssessoRs eMeRging fiLMMAkeRs fund

Angie Fielder Adrian Wills

Appendix 6— industRY deveLopMent gRAnts  
AppRoved And ContRACted in 2011–12

oRgAnisAtion pRoJeCt AMount funded

Australian Teachers of Media Digital Study Guides $8,000.00

dLux Media Arts Digital Studio $8,000.00

Dungog Film Festival Ltd In The Raw $5,000.00

Media, Entertainment and Arts Alliance Equity Professional Program $3,000.00
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oRgAnisAtion pRoJeCt AMount funded

Screenworks
Professional and Cultural Development 
in Northern NSW

$27,000.00

Australian Directors’ Guild Multi Year Funding—Year 2 of 2 $25,000.00

Australian Guild of Screen Composers AGSC Workshops and Seminars 2010 $5,000.00

Australian International Documentary 
Conference 

Multi Year Funding—Year 2 of 2 $14,500.00

Australian Writers’ Guild Multi Year Funding—Year 2 of 2 $25,000.00

Information and Cultural Exchange Multi Year Funding—Year 2 of 2 $60,000.00

Metro Screen
Metro Screen Tripartite Agreement 
2010 to 2012

$200,000.00

Screen Producers Association of Australia 
SPAA Conference / SPAAmart—Multi 
Year Funding—Year 3 of 3

$20,000.00

Screen Producers Association of Australia
SPAA Fringe—Multi Year Funding—
Year 1 of 2

$35,000.00

X|Media|Lab Multi Year Funding—Year 3 of 3 $15,000.00

totAL $450,500

Appendix 7A—speCiAL initiAtives AppRoved And ContRACted in 2011–12

oRgAnisAtion pRoJeCt AppRoved AMount

Bernard Bories Cinema des Antipodes screenings 2012  $8,000 

GreenShoot Pacific
Screen NSW Green Screen  
Resource Content

 $15,000 

Box Communications
Screen NSW Green Screen Resource  
web development

 $5,000 

Sydney Film Festival Peter Rasmussen Innovation Award 2012  $3,000 

Firelight Projects Pty Ltd 
Hands On: A Guide To Production and 
Commissioning in All Media

 $6,000 

Melbourne International Film Festival 37 South Market 2011  $5,500 

X|Media|Lab X|Media|Lab 2012  $15,000 

Tropfest Festival Productions Tropfest Roughcut  $15,000 

totAL  $72,500

Appendix 7b— ContRibution to the AustRALiAn ChiLdRen’s  
teLevision foundAtion (ACtf) foR 2011–12

oRgAnisAtion AppRoved AMount

Australian Children’s Television Foundation  $115,000 

totAL  $115,000

Appendix 8A— seLeCt dRAMA pRoJeCts 2011–12  
(titLes With pRe/shoot/post in nsW)

titLe tYpe pRoduCtion CoMpAnY

Happy Feet 2 Animated Feature Dr. D Studios / Warner Bros. Pictures

LEGO: The Piece of 
Resistance

Animated Feature
Animal Logic / LEGO / Lin Pictures /  
Warner Bros Pictures

Walking With Dinosaurs 3D Animated Feature
Animal Logic / BBC Earth / BBC Worldwide /  
Evergreen Films / Reliance Big Entertainment

Around the Block Feature Drama Around the Block Pty Ltd

Being Venice Feature Drama Dragonet Films Pty Ltd
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titLe tYpe pRoduCtion CoMpAnY

Cowboys and Aliens (VFX) Feature Drama
Fuel VFX / Industrial Light & Magic / Dreamworks SKG / 
Universal Pictures

Dead Europe Feature Drama See Saw Films Pty Ltd / Porchlight Films

From Sydney With Love Feature Drama Pramod Films / Films and Casting Temple

Lore Feature Drama Porchlight Films 

Mad Max 4: Fury Road Feature Drama Kennedy Miller Mitchell / Warner Bros Pictures

Mental Feature Drama Arclight Films / Universal Pictures

Mission Impossible: Ghost 
Protocol (VFX)

Feature Drama Fuel VFX / Industrial Light & Magic / Paramount Pictures

Not Suitable for Children Feature Drama 20 Something Survival Guide Pty Ltd

Pacific Rim Feature Drama Legendary Pictures / Warner Bros Pictures

Prometheus (VFX) Feature Drama
Fuel VFX / Brandywine Productions /  
Dune Entertainment / Scott Free Productions / 
Twentieth Century Fox

Satellite Boy Feature Drama David Jowsey / Satellite Films 

The Avengers Feature Drama Fuel VFX / Marvel Studios / Paramount Pictures

The Great Gatsby Feature Drama Bazmark III Pty Ltd / Warner Bros

The Jungle Feature Drama Mysterious Light Pty Ltd

The Sapphires Feature Drama Goalpost Pictures

Two Mothers 
(pka The Grandmothers)

Feature Drama Ciné@ / The Grandmothers Pty Ltd

Devil’s Dust Telemovie FremantleMedia

Dripping in Chocolate Telemovie Southern Star Entertainment Pty Ltd

Mabo Telemovie Tradewind Films / Blackfella Films

A Place to Call Home TV Series/Serials Channel 7

Bikie Wars: Brothers in Arms TV Series/Serials Concord TV Productions / Screentime Pty Ltd

Crownies TV Series/Serials Screentime Pty Ltd

Dance Academy—Series 2 TV Series/Serials Werner Film Productions

Home and Away—Series 25 TV Series/Serials Channel 7

In Your Dreams TV Series/Serials
Southern Star Entertainment Pty Ltd /  
Endemol Worldwide

Micro Nation TV Series/Serials Freehand Productions Pty Ltd

Miracle of Love aka Rak 
Patiham (Thai TV Drama)

TV Series/Serials Maker Group Production

Packed to the Rafters TV Series/Serials Channel 7

Puberty Blues TV Series/Serials Southern Star Entertainment Pty Ltd

Rake—Series 2 TV Series/Serials
Rake 2 Pty Ltd / Essential Media and  
Entertainment Pty Ltd

Redfern Now TV Series/Serials 2016 Pictures Pty Ltd / Blackfella Films Pty Ltd

Sick TV Series/Serials MTV Productions

Spirited—Series 2 TV Series/Serials Southern Star Entertainment Pty Ltd

This Christmas TV Series/Serials Jungle Boys

Tricky Business TV Series/Serials Screentime Pty Ltd

Underbelly: Badness TV Series/Serials Screentime Pty Ltd
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Appendix 8b—pRoduCtion AttRACtion pitChes 2011–12

tYpe outCoMe: shot in /  
ConfiRMed foR nsW

ConsideRing 
LoCAtions / unknoWn

shot 
eLseWheRe totAL

Animated Feature 2 2

Feature 21 84 5 110

Feature Documentary 1 1

TV Drama Series 19 13 1 33

TV Documentary Series 11 2 13

Telemovie/TV Mini-Series 2 2 4

Reality Series 27 11 1 39

Short Film 39 8 2 49

TVC 13 1 14

Stills Shoot 4 1 5

totAL 137 122 9 268

Appendix 8C—pRoduCtion AttRACtion inbound visits 2011–12

guest nAMe CoMpAnY dAte of visit

Rachel Klein (Producer),  
Demian Lichtenstein (Director)

Solaris Entertainment / 
Equilibrium Entertainment

9–14 July 2011

Craig Rosenberg (Director), Andrew Mason (Producer) Arclight Films International 14 July 2011

Jason Lust (Producer, Ministry of Film),  
David Davoli (Entertainment Lawyer, Davoli Law)

Ministry of Film, Davoli Law 17–24 July 2011

Richard Wright (Producer), David Kern (Producer), 
Andrew Mason (Producer)

Lakeshore Entertainment 13–16 August 2011

Sidonie Abbene (Producer), Shane Abbess (Director) Storm Alley Entertainment 
22–29 September 
2012, 20 October 

2012

Daniel Dubiecki (CEO) Allegiance Theater 13 November 2012

Al Pacino (Director, Actor), Gary Hamilton (Producer)
Cordelear Films, Arclight Films 
International

14 November 2012

David Kern (Producer)
Lakeshore Entertainment / 
Hopscotch Productions

21 January 2012

Joe Caracciolo, Jnr. (Executive Producer) 20th Century Fox
26–30 January 

2012

Gideon Amir (Producer), Philip Patterson (1st AD) Sony Pictures Television
3–5 February 

2012

Scott Trimble (Location Scout), Manny Padilla  
(Key Assistant Location Mgr./Scout),  
Alexandre Chen (Location Scout), David Park 
(Location Manager/Scout)

US Location Scouts  
(Los Angeles, CA, USA)

13–19 February 
2012

Mehar K. Ramesh (Director), Rajesh Malla (Production 
Consultant, Data Mine Solutions)

United Movies  
(Hyderabad, India)

16–25 February 
2012

Wayne Borg (Deputy CEO and COO), Paul Venn 
(Executive Director, Communications), Reine Bejjani

Twofour54 (Abu Dhabi,  
United Arab Emirates)

20 February 2012

Keith LeGoy (Worldwide President of Distribution), 
Angel Orengo (SVP of Distribution for Asia Pacific), 
Zack Van Amburg (Co-President, US Programming 
and Production), Jamie Erlicht (Co-President,  
US Programming and Production), Mark Young  
(VP Distribution Sales, Australia and New Zealand)

Sony Pictures Television 22 March 2012

Stephen Emery (Executive Vice President) Circle of Confusion 25–29 March 2012

Jennifer Bell (Senior Vice President, VFX) Universal Pictures 27–29 March 2012

Greg McLean (Director), Larry Malkin (Producer based 
in the Netherlands), Tania Chambers (Producer),  
Jack Drewe (Producer)

Parabolic Pictures 28–30 March 2012
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guest nAMe CoMpAnY dAte of visit

Jessica Fan (China Country Manager, X|Media|Lab), 
Sense Sun (Chairman, China Film House Investment 
Co., Ltd), Song Zhenshan (Manager, Television 
Department of China Film Co., Ltd), Song Qiang  
(Chief Engineer, CRIFST Producing and VFX Studio)

X|Media|Lab, China Film 
Group (Beijing), China Film Co., 
Ltd (TV), China Film House 
Investment Co., Ltd., China 
Research Institute of Film 
Science and Technology

9–10 April 2012

Kimble Rendall (Writer/Director) Flat Rock Pictures 12 April 2012

Bonnie Burgess (Producer), Cleve Landsberg (Line 
Producer/Co-Producer), Georgie Fenton (Producer)

Sorelle Productions 16–19 May 2012

Dyana Carmella (Associate Editor) P3 Update Magazine
31 May to  

5 June 2012

Yuen Sang-Ho— Director: The King of Pigs, Kleber 
Mendonça Filho— Director: Neighbouring Sounds, 
Alain Gomis— Director: Today, Sally El Hosaini— 
Director: My Brother the Devil, Mahamat-Saleh 
Haroun— Official Competition Jury, Boyd van Hoeij— 
Official Competition Jury, Fabrizio Maltese— Festival 
Hub Photo Exhibition Photographer, Musa Syeed— 
Director: Valley of Saints, Danae Skiadi— Actress: Dead 
Europe

Sydney Film Festival Jury 
Members and International 
Filmmakers

13 June 2012

Stephen Jones (Producer), James McTeigue (Director), 
Roger Ford (Production Designer)

12–25 June 2012

Appendix 9—huMAn ResouRCes peRsonneL poLiCies And pRACtiCes

Screen NSW continues to demonstrate its support for flexible working practices. All staff are given access to 
development opportunities and entitlements afforded under the organisation’s personnel practices. All staff are 
aware of Screen NSW policies that promote equal employment opportunity and flexible working practices.

Appendix 10—ConsuLtAnts

Consultants under $50,000

oRgAnisAtion WoRk engAgeMents Cost

PricewaterhouseCoopers PWC Economic Analysis Framework 1 $20,000

Watermark Search International CEO Recruitment 1 $40,000

Lorsas Pty Ltd Public Relations 1 $48,000

Appendix 11—stAff stRuCtuRe—A fouR-YeAR CoMpARison

CLAssifiCAtion  
And gRAding

stAff nuMbeRs As At

30/6/09 30/6/10 30/06/11 30/06/12

Senior Officer 1 1 1 1 1

Clerk Grade 11/12 6 3 3 2

Clerk Grade 9/10 0 1 1 2

Clerk Grade 7/8 4 4 5 5

Clerk Grade 5/6 3 4.6 5 4

Clerk Grade 3/4 6 4 4 3

Clerk Grade 1/2 2 1 1 0

totAL 21 19.6 21 17
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senior exeCutive serviCe

YeAR ses LeveL position titLe gendeR

2011–2012 3 Chief Executive Female

2010–2011 2 Chief Executive Female 

2009–2010 2 Chief Executive Female 

2008–2009 2 Chief Executive Female 

Appendix 12—WAges And sALARies exCeptionAL MoveMents
The Crown Employees (Public Service Conditions of Employment) Award 2009 increased rates of pay and 
related allowances by 2.5% for staff. The 2.5% increase had effect from the beginning of the first full pay period 
on or after 1 July 2011. 

Appendix 13—stAff MoveMents 

Screen NSW welcomed seven new employees to Screen NSW during 2011–12, including part-time and casual 
employees. Seven employees left Screen NSW during 2011–12. 

Appendix 14—stAff deveLopMent

Staff across the organisation were encouraged to take part in industry conferences and seminars, including the 
Screen Producers Association of Australia (SPAA) Conference, 37 South Market, the Australian International 
Documentary (AIDC) Conference, INPUT Conference, the Australian Subscription Television and Radio 
Association (ASTRA) Conference, X|Media|Lab, Inside Out / Outside In Seminar, Hero’s Journey Story Workshop 
with Christopher Vogler, Financing Marketing and Distribution 2.0 with Thomas Mai, and two executives 
attended the Asia–Australia Media Executive Leadership Program. 

Appendix 15—ACCounts pAYAbLe peRfoRMAnCe

aged analysis at the end of eaCh quarter

quARteR
CuRRent 

(i.e. WITHIN 
duE dATE)

oveRdue
totAL

0–30 dAYs 30–60 dAYs 60–90 dAYs 90+ dAYs

September 2011 $125,885 $4,882,554 $406,302 $102,999 $28,181 $5,545,921

December 2011 $563 $2,737,304 $970,061 $19,339 $14,504 $3,741,772

March 2012 $34,401 $1,843,178 $65,965 $42,939 $193,281 $2,179,764

June 2012 $86,279 $2,705,432 $622,294 $360,577 $16,294 $3,790,876

aCCounts Paid on tiMe Within eaCh quarter

quARteR tARget % ACtuAL % ACtuAL totAL AMount pAid

September 2011 80 90% $5,008,439 $5,545,921

December 2011 80 73% $2,737,867 $3,741,772

March 2012 80 86% $1,877,579 $2,179,764

June 2012 80 74% $2,791,711 $3,790,876

Appendix 16—Risk MAnAgeMent And insuRAnCe

Screen NSW is committed to risk management and has strategies to address internal risks through policies, 
procedures and internal controls. External risks, and the management strategies to control them, are part of 
the department’s strategic planning and performance management process and are included in its Results and 
Services Plan.

The department’s strategic risks include business continuity, legislative compliance, human resources, fraud 
and corruption, and loss of or damage to physical assets. The department manages insurable risks by insurance 
policies as part of the NSW Treasury Managed Fund.

47

aPPendiCes



insuranCe

Screen NSW has full workers compensation, property, liability and miscellaneous cover provided by the Treasury 
Managed Fund (TMF) that is currently managed by Allianz Australia Insurance Ltd (workers compensation) and 
GIO General Ltd (all other insurances).

The TMF is a government-wide self-insurance scheme that provides a systematic and coordinated approach to 
the practice of risk management. Under this scheme, benchmarking was introduced to gauge risk management 
performance with insurance premiums determined by a combination of benchmarks and the department’s 
claims experience.

Appendix 17—RevieWs And Audits undeRtAken

In accordance with the Internal Audit Plan approved by the Audit and Risk Committee of the Department 
of Trade, Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services, an internal audit of the Interactive Media Fund 
was undertaken in 2011–12. Reported recommendations to improve the overall governance and assessment 
processes are consequently being implemented by Management.

Appendix 18—RevieW of CRedit CARd use

No irregularities in the use of corporate credit cards have been recorded in 2011–12. The Chief Executive  
certifies that credit card use in Screen NSW has been in accordance with the Premier’s Memoranda and 
Treasurer’s Directions.

Appendix 19—Cost of the AnnuAL RepoRt

The total cost of producing and printing the Screen NSW Annual Report 2011–2012 is $8,958 exclusive of GST, 
including 50 paper copies.

A digital version of the Annual Report is available from Screen NSW website at www.screen.nsw.gov.au. From 
the homepage select ‘Resources’, then ‘Publications’, then ‘Annual Reports’. 

Appendix 20—depARtMentAL RepResentAtives on signifiCAnt CoMMittees

Maureen Barron

Ausfilm Board: Screen Agency Board Position Media Reconciliation Industry Network Group (RING) 

Ausfilm Finance, Audit and Risk Committee Sydney Film Festival Board

Australian Screen Agency Forum NSW Creative Industries Taskforce

Screenrights Board Member Vivid Sydney Advisory Panel

Screenrights Audit Committee The Intellectual Property Awareness Foundation Board

tania ChaMBers

Ausfilm Board: Screen Agency Board Position Media Reconciliation Industry Network Group (RING) Chair

Ausfilm, Audit Committee Vivid Sydney Advisory Board

Australian Screen Agency Forum

Kya Blondin

Media Reconciliation Industry Network Group (RING) UNESCO City of Film Management Committee

National Green Screen Committee Chair Vivid Sydney Advisory Panel

anna yanatChKova

Media Reconciliation Industry Network Group (RING)
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Appendix 21A—boARd Meetings 

Attended eLigibLe ApoLogies

Helen Wright 9 10 1

Geoffrey Atherden 8 10 2

Rosemary Blight 8 10 2

Darren Dale 7 10 3

Trisha Heaton 10 10 0

Ken Reid 7 10 3

Sue Murray 10 10 0

Appendix 21b—signifiCAnt CoMMittees of the AgenCY 

finanCe and audit suBCoMMittee

Attended eLigibLe ApoLogies

Geoffrey Atherden 5 6 1

Rosemary Blight 6 6 0

Ken Reid 5 6 1

Appendix 22—oveRseAs tRAveL

nAMe of 
offiCeR

CountRY 
visited peRiod of tRAveL puRpose

Megan Simpson 
Huberman

Canada 
and USA

5–20 September 2011

Toronto International Film Festival and the 
International Finance Forum (Strategic Partners 
Co-production market as part of the Atlantic Film 
Festival in Halifax)

Ashley Luke Canada 7–15 September 2011 Toronto International Film Festival 

Paul de Carvalho USA 23–31 October 2011 Ausfilm week

Megan Simpson 
Huberman

UK and 
France

11–27 May 2012
Ausfilm London co-production Mission  
and Cannes Film Festival

Appendix 23—sCReen nsW pubLiCAtions

 f Stacks of Facts: Digital publication updated as required.

 f E-newsletter: 18 issues in 2011–12.

 f Annual Report.

Appendix 24—MAJoR WoRks in pRogRess

Nil to report.

Appendix 25—goveRnMent eneRgY MAnAgeMent poLiCY 

Screen NSW is committed to energy management principles and to achieving sustained reduction in energy 
use. Screen NSW is a small office-based agency situated within the Department of Trade, Investment, Regional 
Infrastructure and Services (TIRIS) at the MLC Centre, 19 Martin Place, Sydney. Data regarding energy usage is 
included in the TIRIS Annual Report 2011–12.
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Appendix 26—seRviCes to WoMen

The NSW Government published its Action Plan for Women in November 1996. The key objectives of 
this plan are:

 f to reduce violence against women;

 f to promote safe and equitable workplaces which are responsible to all aspects of women’s lives;

 f to maximize the interests of women in micro-economic reform;

 f to promote the position of women in society;

 f to improve access to educational/training opportunities for women; and

 f to improve the health and quality of life for women.

All programs of assistance offered by Screen NSW are open to women. In 2011–12 support and funding was 
provided to women in the following select programs:

 f Early Stage Development and Advanced Development and Marketing—77 applications funded, 41 were 
women applicants

 f Production Finance—32 applications funded, 16 were women applicants.

 f Emerging Filmmakers Fund—six applications funded, seven were women applicants.

 f VFX Placement Scheme—five applications funded, none were women applicants.

 f Regional Filming Fund—four applications funded, two were women applicants.

Note: Some applications are joint applications. 

Appendix 27—goveRnMent infoRMAtion (pubLiC ACCess) ACt

The Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (GIPA) replaced the former Freedom of Information Act 
1989 effective from 1 July 2010. The Department of Trade and Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services 
(TIRIS) centrally manages all GIPA applications and related matters on behalf of Screen NSW. Guidelines 
relating to how information can be accessed under this act are available on the Screen NSW website.

Appendix 28—RepoRt on oCCupAtionAL heALth And sAfetY

There were no reports of work-related illness or injury lodged during 2011–12 and no prosecutions under the 
Occupational Health and Safety Act 2000.

Appendix 29—eLeCtRoniC seRviCe deLiveRY

All Screen NSW funding program application forms are in an electronic format. Provision of information  
relating to Screen NSW funding deadlines, events and initiatives was provided online, via the website and 
electronic newsletters.

Appendix 30—ReCYCLing RepoRt  

Screen NSW’s waste paper was collected on a regular basis for recycling. All paper purchased by the 
Department of Trade, Investment, Regional Infrastructure and Services has 100% recycled content, and Screen 
NSW used recycled paper where possible in photocopiers and laser printers. 

Appendix 31—disAbiLitY ACtion pLAn

During the reporting period, disability issues were included in the Screen NSW Induction program for new staff.

During 2011–12, Screen NSW promoted access and participation in Screen NSW activities and projects by people 
with disabilities, where possible ensured that premises and external facilities were accessible, and adhered to 
the principles of equity and access in recruitment.

Screen NSW is committed to improving access to premises and events for people with disabilities, particularly 
in relation to emergency evacuation procedures. Screen NSW will also continue to promote positive community 
attitudes and participation. In addition Screen NSW will increase staff awareness of disability issues and ensure 
recruitment processes are equitable. Screen NSW will make reasonable adjustment to premises as required and 
will provide services to people with disabilities to promote participation.
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Appendix 32—peRsonAL infoRMAtion And pRivACY

Screen NSW is required to comply with the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998. Screen NSW 
collects the minimum personal information to enable it to contact an organisation and to assess the merits of an 
application. An application may be hindered if the information requested is not supplied.

Applications with associated personal details are accessible by Screen NSW staff members and assessors, the 
Minister for the Arts and their staff. Bank account details relating to electronic funds transfer payments are 
accessible by relevant staff. Privacy laws bind all staff.

Personal information obtained from applications or otherwise provided to Screen NSW may be retained on 
Screen NSW databases and used to advise applicants of screen-industry related information in the future.

Applicants must ensure that people whose personal details are supplied with their applications are aware that 
Screen NSW is being supplied with this information and of how this information will be used by Screen NSW.

In accordance with privacy legislation in cases where Screen NSW has been requested to provide information 
about screen organisations to a third party, Screen NSW will provide only general contact details. It will disclose 
the names of individuals associated with the organisation only if these are publicly available.

Appendix 33—ConfLiCt of inteRest

Board members and senior management must keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interests 
that could potentially conflict with those of the organisation. The Board has developed procedures to assist 
Board members, senior management and external assessors to disclose potential conflicts of interest. The Code 
of Conduct, including procedures around Conflict of Interest, is available on the Screen NSW website. 

Appendix 34—LegAL ChAnge

Nil to report.

Appendix 35—CLient Response

Screen NSW received complaints from one complainant. These were handled in accordance with the Feedback, 
Review and Formal Complaints Procedure, which is available on the Screen NSW website.

Appendix 36—guARAntee of seRviCe 

serviCe standards 

 f Responses to correspondence within three weeks of receipt; 

 f Telephone inquiries to be addressed within two working days or progress advice to be given in each period  
of three working days where the matter is unable to be resolved quickly; and

 f Decisions on script and project applications, in normal circumstances, to be made within six to eight weeks of 
receipt of the application.

Confidentiality 

Screen NSW staff are required to maintain and keep confidential to Screen NSW all confidential information 
which they receive in the course of their employment with Screen NSW relating to the affairs of Screen NSW,  
the affairs of clients of Screen NSW or any other party which has dealings with Screen NSW. This extends  
to information gained by employees, the confidentiality of which is not readily apparent. Specifically,  
staff of Screen NSW must not expressly or inadvertently disclose any confidential information relating to  
Screen NSW or its clients or any party dealing with Screen NSW to any third party without the prior approval  
of the Chief Executive.
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Appendix 37—MuLtiCuLtuRAL poLiCies And seRviCes

Screen NSW is a proud member of the Media Reconciliation Industry Network Group, and is committed to its 
Reconciliation Action Plan. Throughout 2011–12, Screen NSW has actively supported both multicultural and 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander screen content creators.

Screen NSW works closely with the Regional Screen Offices to provide support and advice to Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander screen practitioners, as well as for people working with Indigenous content. 

Through its Industry Development Fund, Screen NSW provided financial support to Information and Cultural 
Exchange (ICE) (an organisation based in Western Sydney, which runs programs involving the community in  
the arts and technology) for its Screen Cultures Program. 

Screen NSW provided funding through its Industry Development Fund to dLux Media Arts who worked with 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander youths in urban Sydney and in remote regional NSW locations to provide 
skills development in digital media creation.

In 2011, Screen NSW provided financial support through its Industry Development Fund to Metro Screen  
for its Multicultural Mentorship Scheme. This project provides filmmakers from diverse cultural and non  
English-speaking backgrounds with an industry mentor, equipment, stock, post-production facilities, and a 
$2,000 budget to assist in the development of a short film project.

Screen NSW partnered with Screen Australia and the ABC on the Flash Black Indigenous Short Drama Initiative, 
providing support for four emerging NSW Indigenous filmmaker teams to create 10-minute dramas designed to 
bring to screen Indigenous stories, authored and crafted by Indigenous people. 

Throughout 2011, Screen NSW co-funded the Television Production Trainee Attachment Scheme with SBS.  
The project provides opportunities for individuals from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds to gain 
on-the-job training within professional film and television production companies.

Screen NSW, as part of its funding assessment process, considers the cultural merits of a project. Projects 
contracted in 2011–12 representing culturally diverse voices and stories include: Go Back To Where You Came 
From (Series 2), First Footprints, Bushwacked, The Sapphires, Redfern Now and Mabo.

In December 2011, Screen NSW launched the ‘Indigenous Screen’ section on its website. This section aims to 
provide support to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander screen practitioners, as well as others working with 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people and stories. It includes information on available opportunities, news 
and achievements, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander projects, and various other useful links and details. 
Screen NSW shares many of these stories and opportunities through its e-newsletter.
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